7:00 PM
Room 222

CITY OF NEWTON

IN BOARD OF ALDERMEN

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA

MONDAY, APRIL 12, 2010

ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION:

REFERRED TO PUBLIC FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES

#399-09(2)

HIS HONOR THE MAYOR requesting an amendment to Bond Authorization
Board Order #399-09 for various sewer system improvements as follows:

FROM: Oakdale Road Sewer Project
(37TAA0LELA) ..., $18,500
Farina Road Sewer Project
(B3TAA0LE2A). ..., $18,500
Irving Street Sewer Project
(37TAA01EBA).....oeiveeeeeeeeeeeeresrsrinrin, $18,500
TO: Old Farms Road Sewer Project
(3TAA0LEAA). ..., $55,500
[03/30/10 @ 4:48 PM]
PUBLIC FACILITIES APPROVED 7-0 on 04/07/10

REFERRED TO PUBLIC FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES

#112-10

HIS HONOR THE MAYOR requesting authorization to appropriate and expend
two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) from Wage Reserve for the purpose of
supplementing the payroll accounts of the Department of Public Works to fund
the projected wages through the end of the fiscal year pursuant to the agreement
reached with the Newton Municipal Employees Association in June 20009.
[03/30/10 @ 4:09 PM]

PUBLIC FACILITIES APPROVED 5-0-2 (Crossley and Lennon abstaining
on 04/07/10

REFERRED TO PROGRAMS & SERVICES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES

#110-10

HIS HONOR THE MAYOR requesting authorization to appropriate and expend
six hundred seventeen thousand nine hundred ninety-five dollars and fifty-two
cents ($617,995.52) from Receipts Reserved Fund 14, Account 3314L (Cable
Reserve Funds) for the reinvestment and expansion of Newton North High
School’s and Newton South High School’s television and media production
facilities. [03/30/10 @ 4:09 PM]

PROG & SERV APPROVED 7-0-1 (Ald. Sangiolo abstaining)ON 04/07/10




REFERRED TO COMM. ON COMM. PRES. AND FINANCE COMMITTEES

#28-10

#78-10

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE recommending that the sum of
$362,500, including $2,500 for City of Newton legal costs, be appropriated from
the fiscal 2010 community housing and general reserves of the Community
Preservation Fund and expended under the direction and control of the Planning
and Development Department, to create two units of perpetually affordable rental
housing at 2148-2150 Commonwealth Avenue. [01/11/10 @ 4:23 pm]

CMTEE ON COMMUNITY PRES. APPROVED 5-0-3 (Ald. Blazar, Fuller
and Harney abstaining) on 03/23/10

ALD. FULLER, GENTILE, FREEDMAN, JOHNSON, DANBERG AND
BAKER requesting a review of the elements of the Financial Management
Guidelines of January 2008, together with the Mayor’s Office, to ensure they
meet the current needs of the City. [03/09/10 @8:23 AM]

Chairman’s Note: the Committee will also review the City of Newton Capital Financing
Plan, which is attached.

#207-07(4)

#207-07(2)

#108-10

ALD. COLETTI proposing that the city’s Financial Management Guidelines
adopted under board order #207-07 be amended to allow the adjustment of self-
funded health insurance plan rates in the event that rates and any accumulated
excess resources not meet actual resource requirements. [7-2-08 @12:12 PM]

ALD. COLETTI proposing that the city’s Financial Management Guidelines

adopted under board order #207-07 be amended, effective FY 10, as follows:

(A)total resources devoted to all forms of employee compensation shall not
exceed the estimated growth in total general fund revenue for the following
fiscal year;

(B) funds for salary and wage adjustments shall not exceed the difference between
total estimated revenue growth and resources needed to fund growth in
health/dental and life insurance benefits and growth in the actuarial required
contribution for the city’s retirement system for each fiscal year;

(C) if collective bargaining contracts are not resolved at the time of budget
submission, funds budgeted for such contracts shall be held in “municipal and
compensation” reserve. [7-2-08 @12:12 PM]

ALD. GENTILE, BAKER, FULLER, RICE, BLAZAR, FREEDMAN,
SHAPIRO, HARNEY, JOHNSON AND MERRILL requesting a Resolution from
the Board of Aldermen to the Retirement Board asking them not to spend public
funds to send two members of the Retirement Board to a conference in Las Vegas
this year. [03/26/10 @ 3:14PM]

REFERRED TO PROGRAMS & SERVICES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES

#51-10

ALD. CROSSLEY HESS-MAHAN & LINSKY requesting adoption of a policy
to purchase only fuel-efficient vehicles for municipal use whenever such vehicles
are commercially available and practicable, in order to satisfy the requirements to
qualify as a Green Community under MGL Chapter 25A, §10(c). [02/09/10 @
7:25 PM]

PROG & SERV APPROVED 5-0 ON 04/07/10
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ITEMS NOT SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION:
REFERRED TO PROGRAMS & SERVICES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES
#109-10 HIS HONOR THE MAYOR requesting authorization to appropriate and expend
one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) from Free Cash for the purpose of
supplementing the Law Department’s budget for services provided by the City’s
outside labor counsel. [03/30/10 @ 4:12 PM]
PROG & SERV APPROVED 7-0-1 (Ald. Linsky abstaining)ON 04/07/10

REFERRED TO CMTE. ON COMM. PRESERV. AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
#113-10 THE COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE recommending that
$5,200 be appropriated from the FY10 Community Preservation Fund’s historic
resources and general reserves and expended under the spending authority of the
City Clerk, to preserve and restore the original frame and 19" century portrait of
James F. C. Hyde, Newton’s first mayor. [03/22/10 @ 4:58 PM]

REFERRED TO PUBLIC FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES
#111-10 HIS HONOR THE MAYOR requesting authorization to enter into an Inter-
Municipal Agreement with the Town of Needham for Trommel Screening rental
services for a three-year period (to be used to process compost to be used for
resale in the coming year). [03/30/10 @ 4:08 PM]

#207-07(5) ALD. FREEDMAN AND JOHNSON proposing that the city’s Financial
Management Guidelines adopted under Board Order #207-07 be amended to
require that any proposed capital expenditure above a certain amount have a cost-
benefit or a return-on-investment analysis performed prior to approval by the
Board of Aldermen. [12/21/09 @5:55 PM]

REFERRED TO ZONING & PLANNING AND FINANCE COMMITTEES
#391-09(2) ALD. DANBERG, MANSFIELD, VANCE & HESS-MAHAN requesting the
establishment of a municipal parking mitigation fund whose proceeds, derived
from payments-in-lieu of providing off-street parking spaces associated with
special permits, will be used solely for expenses related to adding to the supply of
municipal parking spaces, improving existing municipal parking spaces, or
reducing the demand for parking spaces.

REFERRED TO FINANCE AND APPROPRIATE COMMITTEES
#376-09 HIS HONOR THE MAYOR submitting the FY11-15 Capital Improvement
Program, totaling $140,377,285 and the FY 10 Supplemental Capital budget,
which require Board of Aldermen approval to finance new capital projects over
the next five years.

REFERRED TO PROGRAMS & SERVICES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES
#363-09 ALD. SANGIOLO requesting a discussion to increase the tobacco seller license
fee. [09/13/09 @ 1:07 PM]
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REFERRED TO PROGRAMS & SERVICES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES

#87-09

ALD. SANGIOLO, BRANDEL, FREEDMAN AND HESS-MAHAN requesting
a Home Rule Petition to allow the City of Newton to require elected officials to
contribute a higher percentage rate for health insurance benefits than is required
for other employee groups. [03-10-09 @ 9:17 AM]

PROGRAM & SERVICES APPROVED 5-1-1 (Baker opposed; Merrill
abstaining; Parker not voting) on 4/15/09

Respectfully Submitted,

Leonard J. Gentile, Chairman
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CITY OF NEWTON

IN BOARD OF ALDERMEN

December 21, 2009

(Various Sewer System Improvements)
ORDERED:

That for the purpose of paying costs of designing and constructing sewer system
improvements at Oakdale ($125,000), Farina ($125,000) and Irving Street ($135,000) and to pay
costs of engineering and designing sewer system improvements on Old Farm Road ($115,000),
and for the payment of any and all other costs associated therewith, there be and hereby is
appropriated and authorized to be borrowed under and pursuant to Chapter 44, Section 7(1) of
the General Laws, as amended and supplemented, or pursuant to any other enabling authority,

the sum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000).

Under Suspension of Rules
Readings Waived and Approved
23 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Ald. Sangiolo)

(SGD) DAVID A. OLSON (SGD) DAVID B. COHEN
City Clerk Mayor

Date:

(SGD) PAUL E. COLETTI, Chairman
Finance Committee




. #399-09(2)

Telephone
. (617) 796-1100
City of Newton, Massachusetts Facsimile
Office of the Mayor (617)796-1113
TDD/TTY
(617) 796-1089
SETTI D. WARREN E-mnail
MAYOR swarren@newtonma.gov
March 30, 2010
Honorable Board of Alderman -
Newton City Hall 3 =
1000 Commonwealth Ave =0 =
Newton MA 02459 =2 O
o O
: . g™
Ladies and Gentlemen: o3 =
In late December of 2009 the Board of Aldermen approved a $500,000 bond & b
authorization for five small sewer improvement projects. The bond authorization votas
by the Board detailed individual appropriations for each project.
Bids have now been received by the Department of Public Works and three of the project
budgets are higher than the bids and one is lower than the original estimate.
In order to allow the Public Works Department to move ahead with the completion of the
sewer projects this construction season, the following transfers are necessary. 1 would
therefore recommend the following transfers, requested by the City Engineer.
From: Oakdale Road Sewer Project $18,500
Farina Road Sewer Project $18,500
Irving Street Sewer Project $18,500
To:  Old Farms Road Sewer Project $55,500
Thank you for your consideration of this matter.
Very t yours, From: Sewer Improvements
37A401EA1-586010 $18,500
{ ; 37A401E2A-586010 $15,500
37A401E3A-586010- $15,500
Setti D. Warren To:  Sewer Improvements
Mayor | 37A401E4A-530203  $55,500 (s ,/ "

1000 Commonwealth Avenue Newton, Massachusetts 02459

www.newtonma.gov

DEDICATED TO COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE
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Sarah Ecker

From: "Wilkinson David, Comptroller City of Newton" <dwilkinson@newtonma.gov>
To: mcostello@newtonma.gov

Date sent: Tue, 30 Mar 2010 14:54:36 -400

Subject: (Fwd) bond authorization sewer prolects

Copies to: secker@newtonma.gov

Priority: normal

Megan,

| the following communication from DPW is the back up for the attached letter
that the Mayor needs to submit to the Board of Aldermen to allow the sewer
projects to proceed this construction season.

Thank you.

------- Forwarded message follows -------

From: "Lou Taverna" <ltaverna@newtonma.gov>

To: dwilkinson@newtonma.gov

Date sent: Mon, 29 Mar 2010 08:46:22 -0400

Subject: bond authorization sewer projects

Copies to: frussell@newtonma.gov,
TJERDEE®@newtonma.gov,
rferrara@newtonma.qov

Priority: normal

Dave,

The following sewer projects were bonded:

Oakdale Rd (37A401E1A) = $125,000
Farina Rd (37A401E2A) = $125,000
Irving St (37A401E3A) = $135,000

Old Farm Rd (37A401E4A) = $115,000
Total = $500,000

We received bids on the Oakdale, Farina, and
Irving sewer construction projects, for a total
bid of $168,053. The bids are much lower than
expected due to the the favorable bidding
climate. The Old Farm Rd project is a design
project.

| divided the bid costs as follows;

Oakdale Rd (37A401E1A) = $68,000
Farina Rd (37A401E2A) = $68,000
Irving St (37A401E3A) = $68,053
Total $168,053

The Old Farm Rd sewer design costs are
higher than estimated. | actually need
$170,500 to fund the sewer portion of the
design. | would like to transfer the following
funds:

FROM:

Printed for Sarah Ecker, 31 Mar 2010, 11:24 Page 1 of 2
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Oakdale Rd (37A401E1A) = $18,500
Farina Rd (37A401E2A) = $18,500
Irving St (37A401E3A) = $18,500

TO:
Old Farm Rd (37A401E4A) = $55,000

Thanks,

Lou

Louis M. Taverna, P.E.

City Engineer

Newton Department of Public Works

1000 Commonwealth Ave

Newton, MA 02459

Phone: 617-796-1020

Fax: 617-796-1051

E-Mail Address: Ltaverna@newtonma.gov
------- End of forwarded message ---—----David Wilkinson, Comptroller
City of Newton, Massachusetts

(617) 796-1305
dwilkinson@newtonma.gov

Printed for Sarah Ecker, 31 Mar 2010, 11:24 Page 2 of 2
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#399-09

CITY OF NEWTON

IN BOARD OF ALDERMEN

December 21, 2009

(Various Sewer System Improvements)

ORDERED: |

That for the purpose of paying costs of designing and constfuctin_g sewer syétem
improvements at Oakdale ($125,000), Farina ($125,000) and Irving Street ($135,000) and to pay
-costs of engineering and designing sewer system improvements on Old Farm Road ($115,000),
and for the payment of any and all other costs associated therewith, there be and hereBy is
appropriated and authorized to be borrowed under and phrsuant to Chapter 44, Section 7(1) of
the General Laws, as amended and supplemented, or pursuant to any other enabling authority,

the sum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000).

Under Suspension of Rules
Readings Waived and Approved
23 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Ald. Sangiolo)

\

(SGD) DAVID A. OLSON - (SGD) DAVID B COHEN
City Clerk Mayor

Date:

_ (SGD) PAUL E. COLETTI, Chairman
Finance Committee
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City of Newton, Massachusetts (617)796-1100

Facsimile
Office of the Mayor (617) 796-1113

TDD/TTY
) (617) 796-1089
SETTI D. WARREN
MAYOR

E-mail
swearen@newtonma.gov
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March 30, 2010 w

Honorable Board of Aldermen
Newton City Hall

1000 Commonwealth Avenue
Newton, MA 02459

Ladies and Gentlemen:

I write to request that your Honorable Board docket for consideration a request to
appropriate the sum of $200,000 from wage reserve to the payroll accounts of the
Department of Public Works. This sum represents an additional amount to cover

projected wages through the end of the fiscal year pursuant to the agreement reached with
the Newton Municipal Employees Association in June 2009.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter.

Ver ly yours,

1%/? 1 D. Warren From: Municipal Wage Reserve
ayor 0110498-R5197 $200,000

To:  DPW Salaries
0140101-5197 $200,000 M
‘3’ $(/M b

1000 Commonwealth Avenue Newton, Massachusetts 02459

WwWWw.newtonma.gov

DepICATED TO COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE
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City of Newton DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 4112.10

OFFICE.OF THE COMMISSIONER
1000 Commonwealth Avenue
Newton Centre, MA 02459-1449

Setti D. Warren

Mayor
To: Se&i D. Warren, Mayor
Thru: Robert Rooney, Chief Operéting Officer
From: Thomas E. Daley, PE., .Co'mmissione'r /)/(
Subject: | NMEA Retroactive Pay and Projected FY10 Salary Shortfall
Date: March 30, 2010

A DPW review of anticipated year end spending, including credits associated with the value of
vacant positions and billing of labor to third parties (i.e. CDBG, C90, etc.), reflects a projected
year-end shortfall of $200,000. It appears insufficient funds were placed into the DPW wage
accounts to cover the impact of the NMEA contract agreement in the FY10 budget.
Accordingly, DPW respectfully requests a transfer of $200,000 into the DPW wage accounts to
pay for projected year end wage needs. Of note, the projected shortfall associated with NMEA
settlement will also impact the Utilities and Stormwater Division budgets. DPW anticipates
these expenses will either be absorbed within the affiliated budgets, primarily through the
maintenance of vacant positions, or require smaller scale transfers from the reserve funds as part
of the year-end close out process. All DPW wage accounts will be closely monitored through
the remainder of the fiscal year in recognition of the acknowledged shortfall.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter. Please let me know if you have any further
questions. ‘

CC:  S. Ecker, Acting Chief Financial Officer
D. Turocy, DPW Deputy Commissioner
K. Griffey, DPW Director of Administration
R. Ferrara, DPW Chief of Budget and Finance

Telephone: (617) 796-1008 ¢ Fax: (617)796-1050 e tdaley@newtonma.gov
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COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE
CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
dwilkinson@newtonma.gov
(617) 796-1305

April 8, 2010

TO: Finance Committee
FROM: David Wilkinson

SUBJECT:  Docket Item #112-10 - DPW Wages: Supplemental Funding

The original fiscal year 2010 Public Works Department budget, approved by the Board of
Aldermen in May of 2009, included funding for all Newton Municipal Employee
Association (NMEA) employees (except for the six man crew whose compensation is
funded from other sources) at their June 30, 2006 pay rates. No funds were included in
the budget for retroactive pay for fiscal years 2007 — 2009, however, $593,950 was
included in a departmental wage reserve account for the projected July 1, 2009 pay rates
(the difference between budgeted June 30, 2006 pay rates and anticipated increases for
the July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2009 time period).

Subsequent to the adoption of the budget, the City and NMEA agreed to a new collective
bargaining contract covering the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2009. On July 7,
2009 Mayor Cohen docketed a request for a $120,970 supplemental appropriation to fund
the retroactive portion of the new contract and noted that fiscal year 2010 costs associated
with the contract settlement were currently available in the DPW wage reserve account.
The Board of Aldermen approved the supplemental funding requested by the Mayor on
August 10, 2009 under board order # 202-09(A).

The primary reason for the DPW supplemental funding request currently before the
Board of Aldermen is that the supplemental funding request of July 7, 2009 is
approximately $200,000 less than all amounts available to make retroactive payments to
NMEA employees. It’s likely that the former administration under-funded their request
for retroactive funding in anticipation of a combination of attrition based salary savings
and private duty work in the DPW budget for fiscal year 2010. Based upon the current
projections by both the DPW and Comptroller’s Office, attrition savings and private work
are not expected to be sufficient to fund the complete difference between the $708,611
cost of retroactive payments and the $120,970 in supplemental funding voted for this
purpose.
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Telephone
. (617) 796-1100
City of Newton, Massachusetts i
Office of the Mayor e N
TDDTTY
(617) 796-1089
SETTI D. WARREN E-mail
MAYOR swarren@newtonma.gov
—_ —
= o
= =
Cares
March 30, 2010 = e M
=c 9
P
o= =
[ b
Honorable Board of Aldermen ?:: =
Newton City Hall " %
1000 Commonwealth Avenue

Newton, MA 02459

[ adies and Gentlemen:

[ request that your Honorable Board docket for consideration a request to appropriate
$617,995.52 from Receipts Reserved Fund 14, Account 3314L (Cable Reserve Funds) for the

reinvestment and expansion of Newton North's and Newton South’s television and media
production facilities.

The appropriation will be used to fund (A) equipment for video classes, computer special effects

classes, and NSHS’s Film Club; (B) a lighting grid for the new NNHS video studio; (C) control
room equipment and fixed cameras for the new NNHS video studio; (D) portable field
equipment for students in the NNHS video production classes; (E) equipment and software for
the NNHS video editing room; (F) equipment and software for 22 video editing stations; (G) one

FTE program aide to be split 0.75/0.25 between NNHS and NNHS.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter.

Very truly yours,

Setti D. Warren
Mayor

1000 Commonwealth Avenue Newton, Massachusetts 02459

www.newtonma.gov

DEeDICATED TO COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE
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Newton North High School, 360 Lowell Avenue Newton, MA 02460

617.559.6400 x454265 617.559.6204 fax NewtonNorthTV(@gmail.com

Newton North Television

FR: Neil Giordano, Newton North television production/English Dept.
Carol Ober, Newton South media arts/Media Lab

TE:; Maurya Sullivan, City of Newton Planning Dept.
Jennifer Price, Principal, Newton North H.S.
Joel Sternbridge, Principal, Newton South H.S.
Diana Robbins, Director, Career and Technical Education, N.P.S.

CC; Bob Kelly, Executive Director, NewTV/NCAC
James Marini, Acting Superintendent of Schools
Tom Fabian, Newton North English Dept.
Paul Shapiro, technology consultant, new North construction

DA: February 18, 2010

RE: "Phase 3" of Newton high schools’ television program investment

We herewith submit the third and final request for funds from the City of Newton's cable receipts
reserve account for further reinvestment and expansion of Newton North's and Newton South’s
future television and media production facilities, for both capital needs and operating expenses.

Since the previous request (“Phase 2”, July 2009), Newton North and Newton South have
combined efforts into a joint program, which will offer production opportunities to students from
both high schools, grades 9 to 12. With this infusion of funds, both schools will together
comprise a joint program in broadcasting, media arts, and film production. Newton North will
operate with a fully equipped television studio and will host and provide curriculum for the
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citywide Career and Technical Education program in broadcasting and production for students
from both schools. Newton South will continue to operate in their Media Lab facility with its
existing blue screen and lighting grid, and will expand their course offerings in video production

== and media arts, specifically with a new course focusing on narrative videos, from documentaries
to fiction, shot on location and in the studio.

Both programs will function independently, and South students who wish to continue their
studies will have the opportunity to feed into North's citywide CTE program.

To this end, the Newton South program is in need of updated technology: camcorders, portable
switching capability, audio and lighting equipment, and computers for editing (see attached
Appendix A). This equipment will be used not only by students in the video classes, but also by
South’s Film Club and the Computer Special Effects students, as well as faculty and students
throughout the building for special projects.

Concurrently, the final phase of rebuilding the Newton North production program will require
that the new studio space be outfitted in the new Newton North school building. With the new
North coming close to completion, time is of the essence to get this studio completed in time for
the 2010-2011 school year.

North's capital needs request consists of five separate components: (1) a new lighting grid for the
studio; (2) a control room and studio furnishings, including studio cameras; (3) ENG (Electronic
News Gathering) field equipment (portable equipment); (4) furnishings for the editing space
adjacent to the studio, (5) computer editing stations (this budget line is carried over from the
Phase 2 proposal).

Barbizon Lighting Co., based in Woburn (a Massachusetts state-approved contractor) has
produced an extensive design proposal for a new lighting and dimming system. Their plan
includes the fixtures themselves, a control board/dimming system, as well as new curtains/
cycloramas. Nothing from the current studio can be salvaged: the lights are either non-functional
and/or pose a fire hazard (new lights will be low-heat high-efficiency fluorescents), and the
curtains are torn and have not been fireproofed in many years. Their quote is summarized in
Appendix B.

The new North studio control room (costs estimated by Access A/V of Concord, NH, and
Camera Company of Norwood, Mass., in Appendix C)—with a new digital switcher, a capture
and playback system, and a new audio control and character generator—has been designed with
3 needs in mind: (1) to provide a teaching space for CTE students who will need the skills and
familiarity with equipment used in the industry; (2) to provide learning opportunities for the
maximum number of students, i.e., if 20 students are in a class, each will have a studio
assignment; (3) playback (broadcast) capability to send a signal throughout the Newton North
building and, for possible future or part-time hosting of the NewTV Green Channel, to broadcast
to the community at large through the cable companies.
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As for field equipment, North continues to be in dire need of more field/location cameras and
audio equipment. (also estimated by Camera Company, Appendix D) The program is currently
running with only 4 consumer-grade cameras (Canon GL-2s), and 4 functioning microphones of
varying quality. We continue to be plagued with equipment shortages and failures that have
hindered production this year. Consumer-grade equipment, while better than nothing, is not built
to be used as extensively as we use ours, so, unfortunately, the cheaper the equipment, the
shorter usable lifespan can be expected. For instance, 2 of our GL-2 cameras, which are not even
1-year old, have been repaired already (under warranty) because of constant use.

Additionally, the adjacent North classroom/editing space will need a few items to customize it
for editing. This includes three televisions (one portable to be pulled into the studio itself), DVD/
Blu-ray players, external hard drives, and assorted accessories. (Appendix E)

We are also carrying over the computer equipment from the Phase 2 proposal. The computer
editing stations at North--an array which was estimated by Apple Computer last year—are
attached as Appendix F. (Portable field equipment that had been specified in the Phase 2
proposal has been blended into Appendix D. Classroom accessories from the Phase 2 proposal
have been blended into Appendix E. )

Finally, we are also requesting funds from the operating expenses portion of the cable monies to
cover the costs of a full-time technical program aide (1.0 FTE) (Appendix G). The current aide
position was previously full-time at North until recent years. Currently, the aide works
approximately 12 hours at North each week, and starting in the spring semester 2010, will work
4 hours at South. With this proposed expansion of the program, an aide’s technical expertise will
be urgently needed at both schools. The aide’s time, as it is currently, can be shared between
schools as needed, likely on the order of a 0.75/0.25 split for NNHS/NSHS.

With this program up and running at full strength as soon as September 2010, we look forward to
sharing the resources of the high school programs with the middle schools and elementary
schools throughout Newton. As video rapidly and inexorably becomes the lingua franca of the
current generation of students in our schools, multimedia and video have become an invaluable
educational tool as well as a critical communication skill for all of us in the 21st century. As
such, future requests for funds—"“Phase 4" and beyond—will no doubt comprise ways in which
the technology capital as well as our high school students’ talents can contribute to the
educational programs and outcomes at the K-8 level.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact Neil in the North studio at 617.559.6400
x454265, and Carol in the South media lab at 617.559.6564. Thank you for your assistance.




#110-10

0T0Z/0€/€ paniwgns

Z Jo 1 abed 'y xipuaddy :|esodoud ¢ aseyqd

(gaxsgso) sbe poduy (60H gaxss0/048zL
00'0S0°L $ | 00°0LZ ¢ | 21seg (DM8zZL) 8eld Yo/m peeH pin|4-1uljy|Auos 1oj) spodu | opoluep/usbog| Gt
-12piodwen
000022 $ | 00°002'2$ /X4 Auog Jepioowed AQ|  AQ J8wnsold /X4 Auog| |
Japiodwed
00'000'S $ | 00°000°}L$ 6OH Auog Jspioowed) Ad| AQ Jewnsuo) 60H Auog| ¢
laysignd
0008y $|0008y $ €:1 Jaysignd Jemo] aAQ oejels|y lsuing gAQ lamo] gAQ oejesely| |
Jaindwon a109
000009 $ | 00°000°€$ aH 9.12/WvY (89+%2) 99 8/ZHD 8'2| Penp ,.zZ dew| 210) peny ,/Z dew|| g
00052’ $ | 00°GZL'L$ WM b7 | J0jeaId AQ Z106-AA [18MO 1Y Y617 Ad Z1L06-Ad lI8mo]| 2
19pJ02BY 19pI0d3Y ’
00009 $|000GL $ @0I0A [enbig gSN 002XS-a0l Auog @010/ [eybiq seplooay sol0p eybia| +
00'000'C $ | 00005 $ "Wo)sAs olw JaljeAeT] SSBIBUIA|  SOIN SSOJBJIAN €O 1| Mo Jesisyuuag| ¥
00002 $[00°00L $ O LG NS SOIN ! LGNS ainyg| z
00002 $|0000L $ Ol [BOOA 8SINS SOIN 8G WS ainusg| z
0005 $|000SL $ Jexi Indui 0} gz001 xAusx Jebuuysg 18X\ olpny 8200} xAuax| |
00°00S'€ $ | 00°005'€$ 1A 08pIA WYOAQ/AH HIA NOSAH-¥9 OAr| |
00GEL $|ooSsy $ 14 001 @|qeD 08pIA ONE 0} DN 8|qen ONg 01 ONg ,00L| €
000FL $|00FL $ 14 9 8|qeD 08pIA ONE 0} ONE a|qe) ONg 0} ONg 9|01
0000, $[/000L $ 14 G'L 8|qeD 0apIA ONd 0} ONE a|qe) ONg 0} ONE ,S'L[0L
0006 $|000EL $ ‘U 001 ®lqeD ¥IX a|qeD HIX 4 01 HIX N .00L| €
00'00¢ $|0005 $ 1 GZ- 919D YIX a|qeD 9|9eD Y1X 52| 9
000002 $ | 00°000°Z$ J0JUOW @D Junowoey you| G ajdu | SJOJUON dESH-A| 1
syndu| BuidooT |eng
00000 $ 0000 $ | yumiouuop O unowNdORY Yydu| /L [eng SI0}IUON dd10¥8-A13Q weoapq| |
S}oajlo
00°00S‘'? $ | 00°00S'v$ | /M ‘Jayoums AQ Indul i JIBYIIMS O8pIABlEe( J9XIW 08pPIA 008-3S ospireleq| |

sojepdn geT elpa|N Yinos UoJMmaN

welbo.id 03pIA SH YInog uomaN v XIANIddV

]




#110-10

070Z/0E/€ panIwgns

T Jo z abed 'y xipuaddy :|esodoud g€ aseyd

00°0S¥'0¥$ V101
so||ddng
00'00S $ [ 00005 $ '0}e ‘sdwen] ‘sieydepy ‘saliejeq "SI Bunybi » esowe) osin| |
00006 $ | 0005 $ 18JOOM 9 ‘19}99M} ,,| ‘SIOJUOW OIpNY/|  SIOHUOW OIpNY 9 LXA M| 2
00008 $ 0000 $ 08ZdH J8steyuuag sauoydpesH 08ZdH Jesteyuusg| g
|o9)s abneb
0002S'L $ | 00°025°'L$ | yLAeuIgeD ebeioyg Aing-AresH paple IIv| jeuiqe) Ajunosg Jjeuiqe) Ajunoeg| |
0000€ $]0000¢ $ s1endwod Z - $SO papusix3 doysojoud doysojoyd doysojoud| 1
00°0¥9'L $ 00028 $ ¢ 0IpN}S 1N [eul4| oIpn}s N |euld olpMs IND [euld| Z
Wd¥ 002°L X/AD0°€ VLVS saAlQ oAl
00'GeY'L $|100GLL $ €1 G'| ®AUQ pieH epnoelieg ajebesg pieH |eusaju| pleH epnoelieg ajebeag| ¢l
SaALQ
000¥S  $[0008L $ eipenp zd alQe]|  pleH [eulsix3 eipenp zQ di0e| ¢
00099 $|000€E $ Allo@ exnjag 0dpIA/BUID - ¢ | Allog uabog Ainp. Aneay Ajjog uabog| z
(2x4 A,
00'00S $]00005 $ £4NGG /. |Auog Joj) spodu] | Anp >>m£ ojosuepy/uabog| |




il

Z ON

Mitang

QUOTE

534215

__NEMTON PUNLIC ROADOSs

=00 WALMUT ST,
ATTENT IO AOTININTE FAYLNLE
STWTCHVILLE, MA 02440

2 Draper S, YWebarn, M A 31881450
(THII9RSEIE Faa

www lrgr¥icaz.oomn

3 FR ST E ol

HESTUN ROKTH FIUK RORSOCL
APs: WEIL GIloDARC
HENTUOR, MR 15340

i 1
' < 5 ; 143
- _ " . =
4 SRS i A A ~il Ve LS B
MRS LHILETE S9TU010 I . i} En FEE S A
EMNING 3 DUETASN
Al “HE MIHE
PR FEIET s s oz
L] ik 3 FPEIDA
;- A~ i e 4-LAMF JZIGH PONRIS Py o I
FEY W/PEASE DI, CLays & LR
¥ N 1 5 4 2, % P RES ' .:?:-
2 % - Amnds = B
s Z9EY HATITEENS 2«8 .- 1 s - 2.08
o T g r TR 1
PEa a8 La ETIRRUS # 3.8 2.28
ETed § " 1 FTEEAATIS L =) b
Lk & e
43 o A $QALI43 1} && = - o
A
L -
&Lt % i & = M
FCR 54 I0CH
— = T
i ran SETFE{ £ i YOTAL QUOTE
AW SE 5 -
THANK YU
ZEML WOT W
t EAagiE -~ S ER NS sl A% .
BARBIZON L3CHT OF N INC,
= i IOEATYS &7
B 3

ATTACHMENT B

WUTES KY

HUETLHEN Vi c18E] 4%

SJOURRTHAR LIPAY




#110-10

0T0Z/0£/€ peRIWQgns

T Jo T abed ‘D xipuaddy :|esodoid ¢ aseyd

00991 $ | 001991 $ Vd OIpNYy JaWel}| NVOS-NA| |
00°GLI $1006GL.LL $ V{d O8PIA JaWesy NOG-NA| |
00'6S $ | 0065 $ 9A0QE 1O} JUNOWXOEY JaWely LMY L
00°'09S $ | 00°09G $ lojessuen) 1se g isingxoe|g | | g Jawely| L8| 1
00°00L'0Z $|0000L0Z $['3IAQ-AE) lend Jayoums gH induj 9| dluoseued NOSYSH-AV| |
buissasoud |eubig/iayomg
05°'€02'9 $ [€jo1ans
00°65 $ | 00'6G $ SA0QE 10} JUNOWXOEY Jawely =1
0G61¢ $|056L2 $ dwy uoinquisiqg YOA €: Jawely| IXE-dA| |
2A0Qe 10j l_ou_co_ztm..SQEOO I
00'626°G $ | 00°G26°} $ Je0 VYOA .SZ/M /| OIpn)S auljold 8|doad Jajdwioid €
J9)dwouidsla |
GZ'866'C) $ [E10}aNs
GL'¥9¢ $]5288 $ 8-dS4 10} Jeg ued |[euolippy 1GLA0| €
00'GE6'Y $ | 0069k $ peeH pinj4 8-9S4 19)3ydes 8 gSd| €
05'86.L°L $ | 056652 $ | O |eysepad Jojyoes | O lejsepad| ¢
r spodui]
002£6'88-  $ [elo}ans _
00'vEE'C $1008.L $ 9|qe) eilswWe] NGE G2/00e0pnig| €
00'¥0L'L $ | 0018952 $ $19]|0U0D SN04/WO00Z JSedpeolg uoullng _ LL-SN| €
00'¥89°9 $ | 008222 $ lapuyymal\/I0JUolN 0D dH 46°/ dluoseued NMO8HT-19| €
|0JU0D BloWeY FdOYII-OV
uoje}s eseg oIpniS rd00£sa-Ov
Jeydepy oipniS eJaWe) FdO00EYI-OV
00'605'¢z  $ | 00GEB'L $ (sapnjout) 00GXdH 10} 8bexoed olpnis oIpMmS-00€| €
00016,  $[0006£9 $ sua7 X/ | .£/¢ uoullnd@8SIN-INYEY LXLLVX| €
006€5'62 $ | 00°G¥8'6 $ 18plodWe] 0IpNiS/Zd £/¢ dlUosSeued d43-00GXdH| €
jusawdinb3 eiawe)

uonejjejsuipusawdinba oipnis AL YHUON uomeN 19 XIANIddVY




#110-10

0T02/0€/€ panIwgns

T J0 Z 9bed ‘D xipuaddy :jesodoid ¢ aseyd

00°'6¥6'G9L$ |ejo} uoijejjejsul pue juswdinba oipn)g
00°000°GLS$ |ejoigns
00'000'GL$ 00°000'GL$ (1oqej) uonejjeysu)
056862  $ [ejoians ,
00'€56 $ | G282 $ yoedyjeg |puuey 8|buig wooles|) 109-S¥| ¥
00'G20°L $ 100612 $ (47X udg) JespesH yn 8|buig woales|d GX-G6-00| G
0G°'2G6 $ | 06°256 $ Uole}S ey wooles|) 20L-SN| 1
woouaju|
00'9€8'¢ $ [B103qNS
00°'G6Y $ | 00°'S6¥ $ (weabold) 103IUOW |eUOISS®)0.d ,ST DAL NOD0STH-WL| T
00'LYE'S $ | 0509} $ 10)luo\ 0907 .9°G @|du| Auog 0ZeSAN| 2
SI0}IUON
GLYYS L $ [B303qnS
GZ'9.2 $162°9.2 $ Jayl|dwy olpny AM008 MY 008ZVD| |
00'852 $ | 0062 $ sioyeads MY GSWS| ¢
0S°0L0°L $ | 05°0L0°L $ | z/m Jaxiy Indu| gz seues Yd XIN YleeH g ua|ly gzvd| |
juawdinb3 oipny
000gE'cl $ RS
oooge'sl  $|oooeeet B lojessuas) Jeyeleyd gH xidwo) aH L94eAu0D| |
Jojerauab 1ajoeieyn
006LL'LZ  $ [e101qnS
00'6S @ 00'6SG w 9A0QE 10} JUNOWXIEBY Jawlely =M™ |




#110-10

010Z/0€/€ panIwgns

Z Jo T abed ‘g xipuaddy :|esodoid ¢ aseud

0G°/0¥'LZ  $ | moians
00°006 $ [ 0081 $ pieD OHAS 99%| MLNOYONAS-d¥|0S
06°201L'2 $ | 0g'Lzy $ podi] g8Z0/M peaH AQH L0S OROLUB g8¢0/AAHLOG| §
00'G/9 $ [ 00'GEL $ pooH aD/m 8se) BuiAue) yog oluoseued HOGLOSNA-OV| &
00°001 $ | 0002 $ 18)]14 uonosjoid AN ININZ.L CAN-WINZZ| G
00°G/9 $ [ 00'GEL $ 0GLOAH 10} Aiepeq [euolippY dluoseued Ndd09ZOIAMA| G
00'066'9L  $ | 00°06€'E $ lapioowed AHOAY SOND .E£/L XE dluoseued 0SLONWH-9V| S
1earc) )N |9A9|-ajelpalliaju] a|qeliod

0G°/6E€vL  $ | I;oans
00°006 $ | 0081 $ pied OHAS 99%|  MILNOPONAS-dd|0S
0G°201'2 $ | 0G'L2h $ podu] g8Z0/M pesH AQH L0S OJolue|y g820/AAHL0S| S
00°0%8 $ | 00891 $ pooH gQ7/m 8se) buikue) }jog dluoseued HOLOSNA-OV| §
00°0S $ [ 0001 $ 19)|14 uonosjoid AN WINEY AN-WINEY| G
00'056 $ | 00061 $ oI unBjoyg |euonoalipiun 0/-ON| &
00'G.9 ¢ [ 00°GEL $ | 0.DAH 1o} Aiepeg [euonippy oluoseued Ndd09ZOIAMA| S
00°G/8'8 $ [ 006221 $ J1apioowed AHOAY A0 /) dluoseued 0LOAH-9V| §
1ean) N3 |[eAdl-Jauulbag ajqeyiod

00°LE¥V'EE  $ | myorans
00°G66'L ¢ | 00°G66°L ¢ | (4o1Sesu] yum asn Joj) pIeoquolMs |0JJUODBAIN L

Jayseou] yum esn Joj) (aINE /9S4 ZHIN990 L

00°020°} $ [ 00°020°) ¢ | /ZHOES 2) 00.8d onQ g 8100 [8ju] uolidsu| ||oQg L
00°2€0', $ | 008G} $ 1seoAuy Joj pseog jnduj |gS [enQ Auos LBSMYME|
00'06€'€Z $|00GS69°LL $ 1ayo)Ms a|genod uoless jseshuy Auog J00SOS-MV| 2

sal10ssa29e pue Ajljiqeded uoonpo.ld ajgenod

juawdinba (ON3) PIdy/a|qeyiod yyoN uoymeN q XIdN3IAddV




#110-10

0T0Z/0€/€ paniwgns

Z J0 Z 9bed ‘g xipuaddy "_wmoao._n_ € aseyd

0s'v08'€Zl ¢ 9N3 379V.LH0d TV.LOL ANVYO
00'60€°2Z  $ | leioians :
00°001 $ [ 00701 $ 9|qeD I ,G'| BIIUYIa] Olpny G'L-7LE8LV[0L
000502  $| 00602 $ oI\ unbjoys apoy Z-91N[01
00008'¢y  $|0008t $ UM A7 SSajalI Jesieyuuag 29dzLim3lol
00°088 $ | 00’88 $ Ol MBIAJBJU| BINYS VP9-dA| 0L
00°002 $ | 0002 $ 8|qeD oI\ 01 0L-¥LE81V|0L
00°00S $ | 0062 $ a|qe) oI\ 52 GZ-pL€81V|02
00°00€ $ | 00'0€ $ 8|qe) oI\ 05 0S-¥1€81V/[0L
00°000'0L $]00000°h $ | esed uoneuiquod olpny Zy-OXIN @oeIqeuod Zr-OXN| 01
00°08¥ $ | 00'8¥ $ sauoydpesH [Bu0ISSaj0ld BoIUyda | olpny 0EN-HLV|0L
000SLY  $| 006 $ J19XI|\| 0lpny 8|qenod 0apIA ubig v¥ ON3[ 01
aIog 8J00AY ‘a|qes )Y
00's¥Z'e  $ [00°6+9 ¢ | X .5Z unow ¥ooys apoy ‘ejod ysij UoIOSs G| olpny Z-9LN 9poy| §
leag) olpny a|qelod
05252'22  $ | mowans |
00056’  $ | 00°S6€ $ pieD sauas 3 gd g99| dluoseued OX91032d-rv|0l
05°20L'2  $|0GL2y $ podu] g8zZ0/M peaH AQH L 0S ORojue a82z0/AQHLOS| S
00°009 $ | 00°0Z1 $ ase) buiklie) Jog eje)y €61-00| §
007001 $ | 0002 $ 13|14 uondsjoid AN NINZZ AN-WWZZ| S
00°0S. $ | 00°0G1 $ 0.1 XdH 10} Kieyeg |euonippy dluoseued ¥Sa-90| ¢
000526k $|000s6'C 3 19pI0dWE) Zd D9 £/} XE dlUOSeued 0LLXdH-9V| §

1299 ONI PIOUBAPY 9|qe}od




#110-10

|g6'€08Zz8 | viOlL e o g A e

G6'66£78 | S6'66€'CS | UIAVOB]

| | - 10J98UU0Y) (0'Z gSN pue uondo 2sI1q| _
,_ -00} 19AeT [enQ ¥+AAQ Xi YIM Jajuld pue| |
| Jaysygnd pue| Jojeoydng SneWONY QD XZE PUB H-/+AAd| |
| i01eoldnp @AQ|  X9) - Jeysiiand 9sIQ-06 B AQ Oid-oreld |

006ZL'9$  00'5+Z$ SAUp|
pley |euleixs | SAUp g1 | 1S8nDZ3| gz
[ |oooev'ol$ |00'6v0°L$ | UONSabuledey A
| | 1o} 3joep ade) | YOA UBUD{lRM 08PIA AQH 00L0H-AD Auos| o)
006/6¢  |006€$ | Seuoydpesy o OvZHYS 8®Inus| gz | |
00zivs  |oo6el$ | Joked Aet-nig : ZXg-daghuos| ¢
00665 006686 |  QO1.2|  (S009¢dZeNT bunswes|
00'866°L$ 00666 | . (71 Sd0S|
ALQH.0S|  -Ol) ALQH [sued jey BIGIA SjUOSEUEd| 2

SN R b
- ABojouyoa] wooisse|g/wooy bunipg :3 XIANIddVY




#110-10

0T0Z/0€/€ peniwgns

Z Jo T abed ‘4 xipuaddy :|esodo.d ¢ aseyd

(dnyoeg

00Z¥6'y $|00092 $/0009L S| | vwIsesaN (Hoddns my Jo siAg)
aAIasY Joj ue|d poddng B 891A18S Wniweld alena|ddy

00667 $|0066F $|I v/Z29e€2d 'SJAg douBUB)UIBI\ JOAIBS X SO 2B

00'€89'c $|00€89'C $|I H40Z Junojy Yoey 8joH asenbg/Addngiamod

lenQ/ie)depe YO A/MOdARIdSIA/ JuBlD paliwiun/euuey)

21914 AO¥/NVY (992 X €) 899/99091X2

/i0ssa@20.d UOBY [B)U] BI0D-PEND ZHOIZ'Z BUD

e | (eanday @O - 19]1043u09 EJEPERISI) - BAIDSY

00'v/Z'LL $|0096¢ $(0068 @ $ Y/9L9PVIN (d4S 03 d4S 99%) 8|qe [puuey 8iqi4 Jaddo) e|ddy
006LY'E $|006LF'E $ |1 | VINZ9LZAL uey ‘Ajlddns Jjemod “Je|j0J3u00

aivy sepnjou| siiy sued wl_mam mmm_O 3 Yeld] A 8siwold

00'66¢7'€L $ | 00'66¥'ELS |L L (g191)

V/ONB6ZAL| Wwe)sAsgns QlvY V1IVS .11 X9) SSe[D-3 YeJ LA asiwold

waysAsqng vy SSe|n-3 YesA asiwoid

00'¥€0'S  $ [ 0002 $ | 0002 $ |l V/ZE68YIN }8S 20(Q Z oIpnmis N9 |euld
00°Gl $ | 00°GL $ L | v/INZZ68YIN 198 BIpa|\ g OIpniS JnD [eul

00'666't $|00666v $ |1 v/Z61£¥A (9suad|| 8)Is) Z oIpniS IND |eui

. Tl olpn}s INJ jeuly

002528 $|o008LL'e $|0066  $[22 | v/1188020 sieak ¢ @dueUBUIBI\ XSO 28\
oogee $|0066L $2 | VWlL6.09 Ae|dsiq pue 0id 2B 1o} ue|d UO0N08}0.d dleDa|ddy

00'86G'L $|0066L $|2 | Wv/1Imgeain 72 Aelds|g ewaui) g3 a|ddy

00'866'L $|00666¢C $ |2 saAu@Jedng gL OM1/FINZLS 0.8Y

QH uoapey |1V/S/99¢ VL1V leues wdi-00Z. 9.11/(g92%9)

g9 |/U0aX [8)u| BI0D-PEND ZHOHIYZ'Z OML ‘0ld JB

0009€'G. $ | 00'892°€ $ |02 aAu@Jedng JeAel-a|gnop Xg ‘@Al VLY [eUSS

g1l ‘g9vXy - NWHAS £4ad ZHW9901L 9991 ‘21 810D

_mE_ 210D-penpd zHOY'Z 1eindwos dopjsap yaul-2Z ol

(oagoep pue o) suonels Bunipg

ao1d 1x3 | @oud yun |AO # ued uonduasag

SI9AI9S/2IeM}JOS/SUOI}E]S Bunipe YMoN uoyman 4 XiIdNIddV




#110-10

0102/0€/€ paniwgns

Z 10 Z 9beq ‘4 xipuaddy :|esodoid ¢ aseyd

G¥'068'2GL $ | G¥'058°251 $
00°096°LL $ | 0009%'2L $|0009%'L $ |l Y/ 11¥vE2a 1anag ) |euld
00'00S'y $ 00005V $|I V/1100.v0 4 uoneal) abeuw
TR T i [ e IAI3S [BUOISS8}0Id
$ | 66'68 $(s668 S |1 V/1192.V1 (2956dYv)
N1 19INO VS LX0L - NAd o8y OdV
Ge6rL'L $|S667LL |l v/11922r L (oe|g) sepis
5_3 ney egmo_ucm XS 19}j9ysieN Odv
e ‘ainsojoug yoey
oeeer'L $[s6682 $|S66EC B |l V/112209.L _Emo Ememmm:ms_ SHomaN dIINS OdY
G6'66L°L $|S666L°L $ (I V/11P€9.L1 (uonoauuo) Jnduj 4og-G1 YININ salinbay
Qozv mm: <>ooom m%-tmEm on_<
0L€ss'6 $[088L6°L $|S66L $|¥2 | WI18L8DL g.19'1/99008 mamh #ob ejeq bieqpue |
G6'v9 $1s6v9 S |1 V/11€080.1 abpuped buues|y 011 ejeq biegpue |
G6'69G'. $|G669GL $ |1 v/11eL2dL 2IeM}JOS
dnyoeg yim Ajoede) aAneN g1z'61 ‘1epeojoiny ade |
sade] pue jiun dnyoeg Biegpuel |
$ | G66'69¢ G6'69¢$ J Y/TILLEAL YOIMS g9 HOd 2 #28¢ dulleseq WoDg
o T  jiomjau ejepels| 10§ YoUMS Jiqeqio
$ | 0096L'Y 0096.'% $|L |O/NWZOrOaW joejes Hoddng 8lemos Jenes X SO 28
00'662 00662 $ | v/ZeZrain (paywiiun) z'¢ dopisa ejoway s|ddy
00'66. 0066L $|I v/99788N _SAI8sX Jo) ﬂ_x SHed 8dIMeg aiepe|ddy
i e e . '~ swayl snoaue||adsiy
001192 $[o0066S $|0066S5 § I V/Z.166YIN pajiwi|un - JaAJBS nD [eul
0009, $|00092 $([L | wisesan (uoddns my Jo siAg)
aMIesY 10} ue|d Hoddng @ 821A18S WNiwald alepa|ddy
00667 $|00667 $ |l v/Z79¢£20d "SIAS SoleUejUIEIN JeAIBS X SO J8IN
00'€G.'G $|00€5L'G $ | ND0Z yoey

8|0H @.enbg/A|ddngiemod _m:n_tmamvm VONA/HOd Aeidsig
AUBID pajwiun/[RUURYD 21q14 9OY/NVY (892 X 9) 8921
/9909 1XZ /s1ossa20.1d UOBY |9)uU| B10D-PENY ZHHIQ'Z OM |




#110-10

0T0Z/0€/€ panIwgns T Jo T @beq ‘9 xipuaddy :|esodo.d £ sseyq
|

000°0¥$: |ejo

000‘0t $ 000‘0% $ uonisod epie 0°L 314 |ejoL
000'ST $ 000'ST $ SHNN pue SHSN ‘uoyonpoid 08pIA/A L ‘uonisod eple 31 4 0 L--sjyeuag
000'sz $ 000'sz $ SHNN Pue SHSN ‘uononpoid ospiA/A | ‘uoiisod epie 3] 4 0| —-Alejes

apie weibo.ud oapIA/AL S|00yds Ybiy uoymaN 9 X|IANIddV




#110-10

| abeyd

0102/0€/€ UeAlins eAinepy Aq pasedaid

|

Fe ™ - v isaviind 7| ; e oy ol g _ |TG'S66'L19 viol

ynog g yuoN|  Buyesedo| R || ~ (sz0/5L°0) uonisod 8piv|00°000'0¥$ 9
SR r_to\z,\ o _mﬁnmo R (a8 ae g . mr_o;_mam mc_u_um ._OEQEOO m.Wolmw..NmF ‘u_
oEE IR O e e D san/oed bunip3'¢6'€08'22$ 3
pl e SHUEN leyde)| ¥ - juswdinb3 pieid sjqerod | 0s’ .wom. €z1$ a
R B ~juawdinb3 olpnis g LWoOY goiiing RUEHIIA SN D
R yusoN|  [ewdeg ¥ WO :zc@swg&pwm. a
 wnog[  eydeg] . A juswidinb3 | 00 o@ v
BT DT ‘ - [ S G

|ooyds| @dinog pundg asodind| junowry Xipuaddy

Six‘[ejo] 184200 SHNN




City of N :
ity of Newton City of Newton, Massachusetts

Community Preservation Committee

MEMORANDUM

Setti D. Warren
Mayor

DATE: 8 April 2010

TO:  Board of Aldermen, Finance Committee

Planning Department staff:
CC:  Amy Yuhasz, Assoc. Director of Housing & Community Development
Trisha Guditz, Housing Program Manager

FROM:  Alice Ingerson, for the Community Preservation Committee

information requested for discussion of
ABOUT:  docket item 28-10, recommended funding for
VETERAN HOUSE (2148-50 Commonwealth Avenue)

Attached please find the following requested information.

We have added headers identifying each document as part of sections 1., 2a., 2b., or 2¢., and 3.,
and numbering pages within each section.

1. CAN-DO audited financial statements for 2009 ............. 23 pp.

2. Planning & Development Board review of CAN-DO’s
finances, 1 March 2010

a. P&Dstaff memotothe CPC & .......... ... ... ......... 1p.
earlier letter from CAN-DO . ... ... ... ... ... . .... 3 pp.
b. background: CAN-DO letter & financial information....... 23 pp.

including: 1 p. cover sheet
3 pp. ltr from CAN-DO
19 pp. financials

c. minutes of 1 March 2010 P&D Board discussion . ......... 2 pp.

3. Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston developer fee guidelines
for affordable housing projects . .. .......... ... ... .. 1p.

total submitted, 54 pp.
incl. this memo

Most information previously submitted for this item is available from this webpage:

www.newtonma.gov/cpa/projects/veteran/veteran.htm

WEBSITE: http//www.newtonma.gov/cpa

CONTACT: Alice E. Ingerson, Community Preservation Program Manager,
aingerson@newtonma.gov, 617.796.1144


http://www.newtonma.gov/cpa/projects/veteran/veteran.htm
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SANDBERG, GONZALEZ & CREEDEN, PC.

j} g G ‘S‘ZC CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

331 PAGE STREET
STOUGHTON, MA 02072
TELEPHONE (781} 344-0830
FAX (781} 344-6900

To the Board of Directors of

Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton
Development Organization, Inc.

W. Newton, Massachusetts

Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Siatements

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Cltizens for Affordable
Housing in Newton Development Organization, Inc. as of December 31, 2009, and the related
statements of activifies, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Cur responsibility Is fo express
an epinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicabie to financial qudits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those
stondards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial siatements are free of material misstatement, An quditincludes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An cudit
also inciudes assessing the accounting principies used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton Development Organization, Inc. as of
December 31, 2009, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Govermnment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
23. 2010, on our consideration of Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton Development
Organization, Inc.'s internal controt over financiai reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, reguiations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The pUrpose
-of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
complicnce and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results
of our audit.

/ﬁf /,,/f/’;/” /’ ﬁ'//») o, P g
SARDEERG, GO% 8 CREEDEN.

Cerfified Public Accgntants
4

Stoughton, Massachusetts

March 23, 2010



CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #28-10
DECEMBER 31, 2009
[(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2008)

ASSETS
2009 2008
Cutrent Asseis
Cash and cash equivalents % 5737 % 9,486
Operating reserves i 108
Accounts receivable 4,868 23.547
Prepaid insurance and taxes 7,397 12,230
Total current assets 18,113 45,371
Properiy and Equipment
Land 803,688 945,302
Buildings 3.561.943 4,131,602
Bullding improvements 2,414,068 2,451,604
Furniture and equipment 12,047 21,209
Subtotal 6,791,746 7,549,717
Less: accumulated depreciation 1,271,602 1,135,381
Tolal property and equipment 5,520,144 6,414,356
Other Assets
Replacement reserves 599 4,084
Housing under development 675,530
Security deposits 15,041 17,299
Total other assefs 691,170 21.383
Total Assels $ 6,229,427 $ 6,481,110
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Line of credit 3 $ 77068
Credit cards 70,497 74,145
Accounts payabie 35,707 27,796
Accrued expenses 67,307 61,527
Notes payable 50,000 50,000
Mortgage payable - current portion 340,518 783,061
Tenant security deposits 15,041 17,749
Accrued and deferred interest 43,836 60,504
Revolving loan pool 20,000 20,000
Total current liabiiities 662,906 1,171,850
Long-Term Liabilities
Mortgage pavable 5,917,777 5,872.9%5
Total long-term liabilities 5,917,777 5,872,995
Net Assels
Unresiricied (395,269) 1563,735)
Temporarily restricted 44013
Total net assets [351.254] [563,735)
Total Liabilities and Nef Assets $ 6229427 $6.481.110

See accompanying notes. See Independent Auditors' Report.

5,G&C

-




#28-10
CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2008}

2009 2008
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Totdl Total
Support and Revenue
Support:
Contributions $ 3995 % 34013 % 38008 3 84,398
In-kind contributions 587
Special events ' 108,478 10,000 118,478 100,464
Revenue;
Deferred rental income 5,161 5,161
Govermment grants 34,091 34,091 73,956
Rental income 385,813 385,813 395,940
Management fees 2,600 2,600 2.600
Inferest income 89 89 105
Total support and revenue 540,227 44,013 584,240 658,052
Expenses
Housing development 27,713 27713 32,938
Rental activities 554,034 054,034 598917
Total program expenses 581,747 581,747 431,855
General and administrative 97,598 97.598 92,231
Fundraising 59,746 59,746 52,003
Total expenses 739,091 C 739,091 783,089
Change in Net Assets - Before Other
Income (Loss) (198,864) 44,013 {154,851) [125,037)
Other Income (Loss)
Debt forgiveness 529,289 529,289 108,455
Sale of property under development (161.959) [141,959) (432,117)
Total other income {loss) 367,330 367,330 [323.662)
Change in Net Assets - Afier Other .
income {loss) 168.466 44,013 212,479 (448,699)
Net Assets - Beginning of Year (543,735) (563,735) (115,036)
Net Assets - End of Year $ [395.269) § 44013 3 [351.254) % [543,735)

See accompanying notes. See Independent Auditors’ Report.

3

S,G&C




#28-10

poday solpny juepuadspy 885 $a1cu BuAuDdLWIOTOn 88¢

$80E8/7 L&D 6L i3 L 65 H BAE /6 E vii8C § eSS § el /T kS
509°€ Hu e 978 &¥9't 61€71 0ge
LlEpE £55'1€ oze £EL L £EEIE
8041 Tt ze ze 144 LS £1
a0 4658 004 006 66471 eVl 098
G Lt PHYTL 919°Z1 19Tt
AN 2407 0iz 6¥5°1 253 9/T 85
££E gl 8el gel
L81E £el'e EELE o968z £L8
072vE 075°62 08E9 0889 0942t BOC01 FASNA
07Ty gy [R2: 084 PRV
000a 00001 0001
i 0899 &97'C HZE
BES | e oSy 089
08 Zr's 558 §58 1141 29€"t cve
art £Z9 £29 €29
Gy L &v 2ol &74°01 &¥4°01
v /81°E yee £96'C £967
6422 WLy OLey 0/TV
LEOEdt YT eEL _ 94751 gcéil! ¥ES/0L veeol
95V 88K9T $T5°S £96'02 £94'CE
TLLEE 1505 5as {56 0%SE'6¥ £E0
9iE7L g/5 89% 01g SZe 53]
&92°1 9ts 9L o1/
&5E'9 QoL 0V'EL
SLLT FISTE ¥i5°1
4rAs ooy - 0ol GoE 00E
5T R0T 00s'eel s LAY AT 567161
P& LE £vi1T 29451 084S 086's
ZiE CiE

P Tad P47y PETY 9LT'Y
568
662°1 eriT 061 ooe £56 £69 097
81T
708 398 808 096
/81121 6/9'STL 0Ty e Qzyis SE8'Z9 L2205 Q95ZL
084Gt £0lrl LAY LAY LSO L79's oLyl
9L Sél4 ey &6L7L . L65'E £i87T 0zL
T 182y & $60°9C Y $60'9T § L6128 €641 ¢ Erol $

|0LOL 0104 Susmlpling DAGDHUSIUILDY Wwioig SSHAGDY Juswidoasg

PUD jDISu9D j{ees [[SIRSI=0 BasnoH
007 00T

(8007 2404 STWLOL IALLYUVINOD HLIM)
600Z 1€ ¥38N3030a
SASNAdXT TYNOILONNA 40 INJWILVLES
"ONI ‘NOILVZINYDHO INIWAO13AIa
NOLAM3N NI ONISNOH 318Vad043Y H0- SNIZILID

{D}G]
SDEUSUXS SIOIYBA
SSEHN
18ADI|
auoudsn|
SATIAIRS Baoddng
sayddng
Alnoag
DOUDLSIUIDW DUD SIDday
usy
SOXD} 910158 (DY
$984 HOUCISS0IL
Bunug
abnisog
SBIIAIDS HCHAD Y
$BTUBANS SNC/UDEBDSW
s99) Jusweabouow
sa9] jobay
BUICDDSPUDT
Balau)
SOUDINSL|
SOUDUBIUIDUL AD0 Y
say Buiig
QUEDUUIGEKT
SSSUBTERS 1UBA]
SUORENDSGNS PUbd $8nQ
SUORDUGQ
uoypside
SEIDHNSUOD)
SEOUBIBIOT
$59) OPUOD)
saunppusdxa oudog
$9BIDUD JUDg
2RyDlY
Busisapy

SOSUSCXe RSIOIG) PUD SBUDIDG
siauey saAoduig
SBEDY HOIADY
SBUDDS

S,G&C




#28-10

CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC,

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2008)

2009 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets § 212479 $ (448,499}

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 192,500 208,233
Debt forgiveness [529,289) (108,455)
In-kind development costs {587}
increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable ' 18,679 o (21.710)
Prepaid insurance 4,833 {1,273}
Increase [decrease) in:
Credit cards (3.648) {2.094)
Accounis payable 7911 (34,647)
Accrued expenses 5,780 5.880
Accrued and deferred interest 3,332
Tenant securily deposits (2,708} {9381
‘Net Cash {Used) by Operating Activities (90,131) (411,292
Cash Flows From investing Aclivities
Purchase of land, building and improvements (711,972 {14,914}
Sale of developed units 738,154 858,400
Increase in replacement reserves (net) 3,485 3013
Security deposits {net) 2,258 (238)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 31,925 845,561
Cash Flows From Financing Activities .
Proceeds from mortgages 914,450 398,015
Repayment of mortgage principal (782,922) {870,327)
Borrowing on line of credii 5,456 22,267
Repayment of line of credit [82,524) {2.249]
Net Cash Provided {(Used) by Financing Actlivities 54,460 (452,294)
{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {3,746) {18,025)

See accompanying notes. See Independent Auditors' Report.

-5
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2008)

#28-10

{Continued)
2009 2008
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 9,594 27.619
Beginning Ending
Cash and cash equivalents  § 9,486 § 5737
Operaiing reserves 108 111
b...2594 §_ 5848
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 3 5,848 $ 9,594
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: .
' Interest paid and expensed $ 133224 $....17303]
Write off of fully depreciated equipment % 2,162 3 0

See accompanying notes. See Independent Auditors’ Report,

-6-
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#28-10

CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

Note 1. Organization

Citizens far Affordable Housing in Newton Development Organization, inc. (CAN-DO), was organized in
January, 1994 in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts as a not-for-profit corporation, The purpose of
the Crganization is 1o expand the supply of decent and affordable housing in Newton, Massachusets.
The purpose s accomplisned by promoting the development, construction and conversion of
properties and serving as a Community Housing Development Crganization.

The Organization currently owns and rents four residential properiies with a total of 8 affordable
housing units, In addition. the Organization has two transifional housing properties with a total of eight
units and one group home that houses six people.

Note 2. Summary of Sianificant Accounling Policies

a.

5, G&C

Standards of Accounting and Reporting

The Organization follows the standards of accounting and financial reporting as
described in the American Institute of Cerfified Public Accountants' Audit and
Accounting Guide for "Not-for-Profit Organizations”.

financial Statement Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the requirements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {SFAS) No. 117,
Financial Statements of Nof-for-Profit Organizations.  Under SFAS No. 117, the
Organization is required io report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. A description of the three
net asset categories follows:

Unrestricted - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by oction of
the Board of Directors.

Temporarly Restricted - Net assets whose use by the Organization is subject fo
donor-imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions of the Organization
pursuant to those restrictions or that expire by fhe passage of tims.

Permanently Restricted - Net assetfs subject fo denor-imposed restrictions thot

they be maintained permanently by the Organization. No permanentiy

restricted assels were received or heid during 2009 or 2008 and accordingly,

these firancials do not reflect any activities related o this class of net assets for
2009 or 2008.

Property and Eguipment

These assets are stated at cost or if donated, at fair value at date of receipt.
Mdaintenance repairs and minor repairs are expensed as incured and major renewals
in excess of $1,000 which extend the life of the assets are capitalized.

7-




#28-10

CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FHNANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Continued)

Note 2. Summary of Sianificant Accounfing Policies [Continued)

d.

5,G&C

Depreciction
Provisions for depreciation are made in the accounts using the sirgight-line method.

Eavipment is being depreciated over 3-7 years and the building and improvements
over 20-27.5 years.

Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are aliocated among program and supporting services directly or on the
basis of time records and ufllization estimates made by the Crganization’s
management, General and administrative expenses include those expenses that are
not directly ideniifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall
support and direction of the Organization.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Forpurposes of the siatement of cash flows, Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newfon
Development Organization, Inc. considers all highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Use of Estimates .
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reporied amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donorresirictions. When a time or purpose restriction expires, restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and are reported in the Statement of Activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated goods and services represent the estimated fair market value of materials
and services provided. Donated services are recognized as contributions in
accordance with SFAS No. 116, Accounfing for Confributions Received and
Contributions Made, if the services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (o)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Organization.




#28-10

CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FNANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009
IContinued)

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i. Donagied Materigls and Services {Confinued)

For the year ended December 31, 200%, the Organizatfion received legal services
valued atf $1.500 provided during the sale of housing units during the vear. The vaiue
was not reflected in the accompanying financial statements as i did not meet the
criteria for recognition.

Note 3. Tax Status

Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton Deveicpment Organization. Inc. is exempt from federal and
state income tax under Section 501 (c}{3) of the internal Revenue Code and accordingly, no provision
forincome taxes is included in the financial statements. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the
charitable contribution deduction under Section 170{b)(1}{a) and has been classified as an
Crganization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a){1).

Note 4. Concentrafion of Credit Risk
Credit risk with respect fo receivables is considered low because a substantial portion is due from
tenants.  Tenant receivables are closely monitored by maonagement and rental property

management companies with strict guidelines in place when balances infficlly become delinguent.

Note 5. Propery Under Development

At December 31, 2009, the Organization had the following site including land, builging and
improvements under development:

Building and
Land Improvements Total
Veteran House $ 67553 3 407,977 $ 675530

Notfe 6, Confract Management Services

Two residential rental properties, Nonantum Place and Christina Street, are managed by the Newton
Community Development Foundation. Coniracted management fees for the years ended 2009 and
2008 were 310,749 and $22,485, respectively.

S,G&C




CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON

DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Continued)

Ncte 7. Morgage Payable

2009

#28-10

2008

current

Long Term

Total

Toigl

Nonanium Piace - Three Unit Residential

Newton Community Development

Authority-Rehab dated 6/20/96 of

$123.455; at 3% per annum; requires

monihly payments of $485; administered

by Brookline Savings Bank, secured by

real estate; due 7/1/2016; balance forgiven

in June 2009; $ -

Newton Community Development Authority

dated 12/1/95, of $104,247; forgivable

deferred loan; due 15 years from completion

date or April, 201 1; one-fifteenth of unpaid

balance due annudlly until maturity;

payment deferred as long as Organization

continues o own property and verification

of restrictions are filed timely and events of
acceleration have not occurred; -

Community Economic Development Caorp-

oration {CEDAC) date of 1/3/97 of $90,000

at 5% accrued for first twenty years; due 2017;

a cash payment due annually if gross receipts
exceeds 105% of cash expenditures;

Organization in compliance and all payments
deferred; accrued interast totaled $35,975; -

The Village Bank Loan dated 12/28/04, of
$130,000 at 7.125%; requiring monthly payments
of $884.97; cue 12/28/21. 1.735

104,247

%0,000

123,708

104,247

20,000

125,443

$ 55.605

104,247

20,000

127,519

Subtotal Nonantum Place 1,735

317.955

312,690

377371

-10-
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON

DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Continued)

Note 7. Morigage Payable (Continuad)

2009

#28-10

2008

Current

Long Term

Tolal

Tolal

Christing Street — Five Unit Residential

Newton Community Develepment Authority

dated 8/26/99 of $225,000 at 7%, due forty

years from proiect completion; one-fifteenth

of original princigal, $15.000, and accrued

interest due each annual anniversary date of
completion; payment deferred if Organization

in compliance; secured by third mortgage on
property; -

Newton Community Development Authority
adminisiered by Brookline Savings Bank dated

8/1/02 ot $200,000 at 3%; due in monthly

payments of $843.21; balance due 6/2/2032;

secured by third mortgage on property:

balonce forgiven in June 2009; -

Boston Community Loan Fund dated

5/23/02 of $101,942 at 7%; due in monthiy
payments of $677.94, balance due 1/15/2024;
secured by second mortgage on the subject

property; 1,173

Newton Community Development Authority

dated 12/02 of $45,150 at 7.25%: balance

due 12/2022; secured by second mortgage

on the subject property; -

The Village Bank {formerly the Auburmdaie
Co-operative Bank) dated 7/18/02 of $488,315
at 6.375%; requiring monthly payments of

$1.,864.09; balance due by 7/18/2032; 5,528

CEDAC 8/15/2002 of $125,000 at 0%;
unless in default, then at 5%: balance
due 7/15/2032; -

Newton Community Development Authority

dated 2/12/04 of $32,736 at 3%; due in monthly
payments of $138.02; balance due 2/12/2034;
balance forgiven in June 200%; -

-11-
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225,000

97,426

45,150

260,672

125,000

225,000

98,599

45,150

266,200

125,000

225,000

171,313

99,771

45,150

272,965

125,000

29,299




CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON

DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Continued)

Note 7. Morigage Payable (Continuaed)

2009

#28-10

2008

Current

Long Term

Total

Totdl

Christina Street - Five Unif Residential (continued)
Newton Community Development Authority
doted 2/12/04 of $11,645; forgivable deferred
loan at 7.25% per annumy; due 2/12/14 as long

as Organization continues to own property

and verification of restrictions are filed timely
and events of acceleration have not

occurred.

11,665

11,645

11.665

Subtotal Christina Street 6,701

7649313

771,614

980,163

Websier Street - Six Units Residential

Newton Community Development Authority

dated 8/23/00 of $237.,957 at 7%, due forty

yvears from project completion; one-foriieth

of original principal, $5.625, and accrued

inferest due each annual anniversary date

of completion; payment deferred if

Organization in compliance; secured by

third mortgage on property; -

The Village Bank [formerly the Aubumdale
Co-operative Bank} dated 3/14/02 of $325,000

at 6.5%; due in monthiy payments of $1,804;

balance due 3/14/2032; 6,160

CEDAC 4/22/02 of $389.811 ot 4.375%; -
Massachusetts Housing of $250,000 ot 6.375%. -

The Newton Community Development Authority

dated July 2, 2009 of $8,150 at 0% interest rate;

balonce due July 2, 2014; 20% of ioan amount

will be forgiven on each anniversary of the date

of loan with complionce of terms and conditions

of loan. 1,630

237,957

282,710
389.811

250,000

6,520

237,957

288,876
389.811

250,000

8,150

237,957

297,236
382,811

250,000

Subtotal Webster Street 7.790

1,166,998

1.174.788

1,175,004

18-20 Cambria Read - Twe Units Residential

City of Newton, Communily Preservation

Grant (CPA} dated 9/29/03; deferred grant

loan with a permanent affordable housing

restriction; -

-152-
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200,000

200,C00
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009
{Continued)

Note 7. Mortgage Payable ({Continued)

2009

#28-10

2008

Current Long Term

Total

Total

18-20 Cambria Road ~ Two Units Residential {continued)

Newton Community Development Authority

serviced by Brookline Bank dated 8/1/2003 of

$106,492 at 3% due in monthly payments of $449

balance due 8/1/2033; balance forgiven in

June 2009; -- --

The Village Bank (formerly the Auburndaie

Ce-operative Bank) dated 12/19/02

of $400,000 at 5%; due in monthly payments

of $2.032.40; balance due January 2033; 6,672 283,340

Newton Community Development Authorily

dated 12/1%9/02 of $200,000 at 7%; due

50 years from completion; ne interest accrual

as cancellation of obligation expected; -- 200,000

Newton Community Development Authority
dated 7/22/03 of $25,949; forgivable deferred
lcan in ien years as fong as no change in use; - 25,969

Newton Community Development Authority
dated 10/29/08 of $6,910; comprised of CDBG
funds, 6,210

290,012

200,000

25,969

4,210

93,826

296,430

200,000

25,969

46210

Subtotal 18-20 Cambria Road 6,672 716,219

722,591

823335

11-13 Cambria Road ~ Two Units Residential

Benjamin Frankiin Bank dated 7/13/06, of

$160,000 ot 7%; requiring monthly payments

of $1.075.65. due 7/13/36; refinanced July 2009

at the Village Bank of $240,000 for a 15 year

term with a 30 year amortization. The interest

rate for the first 5 years is 6%. On each five yeaor

anniversary the interest rate will adjust to the

5 year federal home loan Bank of Boston

Regular Classic Advance rate plus 2.5%; poid

In fulf July 2009; - --

Newton Community Development Authority

dated 1/6/06; of $200,000 at 0%; forgivable

deferred loan provided the property complies

with Community Development Block Grant

program regulations and requirements for no

fess than 50 years; -- 200,000

-13-
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200.000

155,990
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009
{Continued)

Note 7. Mortgage Pavable {Continued)
2009

#28-10

2008

Current Long Term

iotal

Total

11-13 Cambria Road - Two Unit Residential {continued)

City of Newton, Community Preservation

Grant (CPA) dated 5/16/06; deferred grant

loan with a permanent affordable housing

restriction; - 350,000

Local Inifiatives Suppori Corporation dated

3/28/06 at &% on the cutstanding principal

balance due on a monthly basis; due and

payable on the earlier of (i} the closing and

initiat funding date of any Community

Preservation Funds for the “Project” from the

Commonweadlth of MA, or {ii) the two vear

anniversary of the first day of the first full

month after the closing date (5/1/08); - -

NCDA dated 8/1/06, of $4%,975 at 0%,
requiring monthly payments of $138.82;
due 8/1/36; balance forgiven in June 2009; - -

The Village Bank {formerly Aubumdale

Co-operative Bank} dated July 14, 2009 of

$240.000 at 6%; due in monthly payments of

$1.425.58; balance due on July 14, 2039; 3,873 234,892

350,000

238,765

350,000

447

45809

Subfotal Cambria Road 3873 /84,892

/88,745

752,246

Chestnut Street

Cambridge Savings Bank construction loan

dated 12/30/03 up to $2.775,000, at 6%, due

12/1/2005; additional $144,204 drawn 2007

and reduced by sale proceeds, remaining

$198.276 restruciured; due March 31, 2018;

3.5% fixed for three years through March 31,

2C12; re-priced ot 250 bps over the 3 yvear

FHLB rate for years 4-6 and 6-9; 3,939 190,458

194,397

198,276

Subtotal Chestnut Street 3,239 190,458

194,397

198,276

Falmouth Road — Two Unit Residential

The Village Bank lcan dated 10/12/05 of
$287.500; interest at 6.625%: $1,859.10
monthly due 10/12/2020; 5,383 267,042

“T4-
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDAEBLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009
{Continued)

Note 7. Morigage Payable [Continued)

2009 2008
Current Long Term Total Total

Falmouth Road ~ Twe Unit Residential (Continued)

Newlon Community Development Authority

dated 9/1/05 of $80,000 ot zero inferest;

payments of $222.22 monihly with balance

due 10/1/2035 requiring continued ownership

and verification of restrictions filings monthly

or other events which by cause acceleration;

balance forgiven in June 2009; - - - 71.556

City of Newton, Community Preservation

Funding {(CPA), dated 8/11/2005 of $275,000,

deterred grant loan with a permanent affordable

housing restriction and repayment of $237,500

to MHIC; only payable if the terms of the deed

restriction are violated: - 275,000 275,000 275,000

Newion Community Development Authority
. deferred loan dated 8/11/2005 of $62,500;
" comprised of CDBG funds; zero interest
balance forgivable 10/2054; - 62,500 62,500 42,500

Newton Community Development Authority

deferred loan dated 10/15/04 of $200,000;

balance due 10/15/54; - 200,000 200,000 200,000
Subtotal Falmouth Road 5,383 804,042 809,925 884,078

Jackson Road - two Unit Residential

The Village Bank loan dated 10/12/05 of

$287.500; interest at 5.5%,; $1.85%.10

monthly due 10/12/2020; 4,425 268,000 272,425 277.022

Newton Community Development Authority

dated 9/1/05 of $80.00C at zero interest;

payments of $222.22 monthly with balance

due 10/1/2035 requirng confinued ownership

and verification of restrictions filings monthly or

other events which cause acceleration; balance

forgiven in June 2009, - - - 71,556

-15-
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES 7O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009
[Confinued)

Note 7. Morgage Payable [Confinued)

2009

#28-10

2008

Current Long ierm

Total

Total

Jackson Read ~ Two Unit Residential (continued)

City of Newton, Community Preservation

Funding {CPA), dated 8/11/2005 of $275,000,

deferred grant loan with a permanent

affordabie housing restriction and repayment

of $237,500 to MHIC; only payable if the

terms of the deed restriction are violated; - 275,000

Newion Community Development Authority

deferred loan dated 8/11/2005 of $62.500;

comprised of CDBG funds; zero interest

balance forgivable 10/2054; - 62,500

Newton Community Development Authority
deferrad loan dated 10/15/04 of $200,000;
balance due 10/15/2054; 200,600

275,000

62,500

200,000

275,000

42,500

200,000

Subtotdl Jackson Road 4,425 805,500

809,925

886,078

Coyne Road

The Village Bank dated November é, 2007

of $70,400 interest only ot 5.5% pending

receipt of CDBG and HOME funds, baiance

due on 2/6/09; paid in full August 2009; - -

Newton Community Development Authority

deferred loan dated January 7, 2008; totaling

$391,105 comprised of CDBG ang HOME funds;

zero interest; balance forgivabile 10/2054; - -

186.400

321,105

Subtotal Coyne Road - -

577,505

“16-
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

(Continued)
Note 7. Mortgage Payable {Continued)
2009 2008
Current Long Term Total Total
Veteran House-Two Unif Residential
The Village Bank dated Novernber 16, 2009
of $664,300 at 6% interest rate; payments of
interest only are due and payabkle monthly;
balance due November 14, 2010; $300,000
1o be repaid upon receipt of loan funds
from the Newton Community Development
Authority [CDBG) approved 12/30/0%; payable
50 years from completion date. 366,300 300,000 666,300 -
Subtotal Veteran House 364,300 300,000 464,300 -
Total Mortgages Payable $ 406818 3 5851477 $ 6258295 § 6,656,056

Future minimum payments of principal are as follows:

2010 $ 406,818

2011 40,059

2012 42,384

2013 44,854

2014 47,478

2015 and thereafter 5,676,702

Notfe 8. Note Payable

From an individual dated July 23, 2007 for $50,000 zero interest due December 31, 2007, extended to
December 31, 2010.

Note 9. lLine of Credit

The Crganization had a $57,000 line of credit with an interest rate of 7.25% per year expiring June 30,
2009 and another $20,000 line of credit with an inferest rate of 4.25% per year expiring February 15,
2049, In addition, one credif card had o cash advance fotaling $68. During fiscal year 2009, the
whole balance was paid off.

Note 10. Revolving Loan Pool

In 1999, the Organization received a $20,000 grant from the Newton Community Development
Authority to establish o revoiving account, which will provide immediaie funding for deposits and
down payments to acquire property for use as affordable housing.

17
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON
DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Continued)

Note 11. Developer Fees

The Organization earns developer fees from the renovation of housing projects. These fees fluctuate
throughout the course of a project due to budget changes. No development fees were recognized in
2009 due to the board decision to abort a development project in 2009,

Note 12. Compensated Absences

Vacation and sick pay are considered expendituresin the year paid. Upon termination the employee
is compensated for any accrued but unused vacation pay. The Organization has not accrued
compensated apsences because the amount cannot be reasonably estimated.

Note 13. Retirement Plan

A 403B plan was established in 2001 that covers the Executive Director. Pension expense for 2009 and
2008 totaled $6,615 and $6,615, respectively. The estimated unfunded benefit totals $53,713 and is
included as an accrued liability.

Note 14. Related Party Activity

In accordance with the Agency’s articies of Organization one Board member is an income eligible
tenant in one of the units authorized and monitored by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

One board member provides printing services to the Organization through his business at a reduced
rate that totaled $1,744 for 2009.

The Executive Director is an employee of the Organization,
Note 15. legses
Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton Development Organization, Inc. entered into a lease
agreement extension expiring June 1, 2009, The lease requires monthly payments of $2,005 in 2008
and increased to $2,085 from July 2008. Rent expense for the year ended 2009 and 2008, totaled
25,520 and $24,721, respectively. Future minimum rental payments for the year ending December 31
are as follows:

2010 $ 25020
In addition, the Organization entered into an operating lease agreement for a vehicle expiring 2010.
The lease requires monthly payments of $258. Future minimum lease payments for the year ending

December 31 are as follows:

2010 $ 714

-18-~
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON

DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Continued)

Nofe 14. lead Free Forgivable Grant/Loans

The Organization has received a number of grants to remove lead from various developments ranging
from $2.998 to $30.000. These grants are reduced over afive year period by the City of Newton. Many
of these grants were reported asrevenue in the years received. All properties receiving these grants
are currently operating s income eligibie housing.

Note 17. Forgiven Debt

At December 31, 2007, the City of Newton forgave affordable housing loans provided through the
Newton Community Development Authority, as itemized in Note 7, for the improvement of the
following affordable housing sites:

Nonanitum Street $ 52,323
Christing Street 198,202
Cambria Road 137.890
Falmouth Road 70,438
Jackson Road 70,438
Total $529.289

Note 18. Sale of Property Under Development

The Organization compieted the sale of affordable housing iocated on Coyne Road in 2009 resutting
in the following:

Cost of housing $ 738,153
Cost of sale 1,311
Less: Liquidation of debt 577,505
Loss on sale of affordable
Housing 161,959)

-19.-
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SANDBERG, GONZALEZ & CREEDEN, PC.

-y

Y i
o
%{j &{ CERTTFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

351 PAGE STREET
STOUGHTON, MA 02072
TELEPHONE (781) 3440850
FAX (781) 344-6960

To the Beard of Directors of

Cifizens for Atfordable Housing in Newton
Development Organization, inc.

West Newton, Massachusetts

Repert on Intermai Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on
an Audit of Financial Statemenis Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

We have cudited the financial statements of Citizens for Affordabie Housing in Newton Development
Organization, inc. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 23, 2010, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generdlly acceptedin the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
confained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Citizens for Affordable Housing in
Newton Development Organization, Inc. as of and for the vear ended December 31, 2009, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Ametica, we
considered Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton Development Organization, inc.'s interal
control cver financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's infemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control,

A deficiency In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstaterments on a tfimely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in internal controi, such that there is a reasonable possibifity that o
material misstatement of the entity's financial statementis will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal confrol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
and was not designed 1o identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that ail such
deficiencies have been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider fo be material wegknesses,

-20-
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonabie assurance about whether Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton
Development Crganization, Inc.'s financial statements are free of material missiatement, we
performed tests of s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and matergl effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on complfiance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters thet are
required 1o be reported under Government Audifing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to the management of Citizens for Affordable
Housing in Newton Development Organization, Inc. in a separate letter dated March 23, 2010.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit commiftes, management, and
the Board of Directors and is notintended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified @er‘ries

Certified Pub ic A fémoms

Stoughton, Mossochusaﬁs
March 23, 2010

5,G&C
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UPDATE as of 1 March 2010: review meetings with the P&D Board will be scheduled 4 times a year.
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Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton

1075 Washinggon Street
West Newton, MA 02465
Phone: 617-964-3527
Fax: 617-964-3593

E-mail: jam_cando@msn.com
Website: www.newtoncando.org
Josephine McNeil, Executive Director

Development Organization, Inc. .

July 8, 2009

Mr. Michael Kruse

Newton Housing Office
“Newton City Hall

1000 Commonwealth Avenue
Newton, MA 02459

RE: Direct Loan Debt Forgiveness - $529,817.24

Dear Mr. Kruse:

First, I want to thank you for your support of our request for debt forgiveness. The need for debt forgiveness was due to
the significant loss the organization experienced on the Millhouse Commons project. We loss approximately $450,000
due to(1) the extended permitting process despite the project being a Ch. 40B development and (2) the multi month
process for the approval of CPA funding. These delays resulted in the units coming on line just as the market began to
fall. We had no problem selling the 4 affordable units. In retrospect our decision to create 4 affordable units in a 6 unit
project or 67% of the units instead of the usual 20% while laudable was not financially wise. As we closed the project
with an outstanding construction and did not earn our expected developer fee of approximately $150,000.

As set forth in your recommendation to the Planning and Development Board, I am submitting the following
information.

L PLAN TO ACHIEVE LONG-TERM FINANCIAL STABILITY

The City of Newton recommended to the Planning and Development Board that NHRF loans in the amount of
$529,817.24 be forgiven and the recommendation was approved. Thus, we will have an additional $32,377.00 in
income. Those funds will be used to offset the payments associated with the restructuring outline below:

A. The need to payoff the $198,276.16 outstanding construction loan from the 1101 Chestnut Street project
(Millhouse Commons), Restructures loan- 3.5% fixed for three years through March 31, 2012; re-priced at 250 bps
over the 3 year FHLB rate for years 4-6 and 6-9. The current monthly payment is $890.35 or $10,684.00 annually.

B. The need to develop a long-term plan to make principle and interest payments on an existing line of credit,
which has a $20,000 balance with an interest rate of 6.0%, and an interest-only loan in the amount of $57,000 with
an interest rate of 7.25% with The Village Bank , collectively “TVB Unsecured Obligations”. Request that The
Village Bank add this debt to the refinanced mortgage of $160,000 on 11-13 Cambria Road, The cost would be
approximately $397.00 per month or $4764.00 annually.

C. The need to eliminate CAN-DO’s current credit card debt which is $75,000.




Seek a Iender to consolidate these into one loan with a lower interest rate of 9% and plan to pay it off in 5 yea#g8-10
The cost will be approximately $18,900 per year.

D.The need to sell 29 Coyne Road in order to pay off the TVB mortgage. We have
executed a Purchase and Sale Agreement to sell the property to an income eligible first time homebuyer for
$195,000.00. This will enable us to payoff the mortgage of $185,316.

Under separate cover, I have submitted CAN-DO’s actual FY09 and a projected 2010 budget which reflects the funds
generated by the elimination of the payments. ‘

II. ONE TO THREE YEAR STRATEGY FOR STRENGTHENING FINANCIAL EXISTENCE
A. Reducing Financial Risk when Planning Projects:

Over next three years focus primarily on “as of right” rental projects with a pre-development period,
construction period and occupancy of less than 18 months. In addition, we will try to obtain
predevelopment funds in order to limit the expenses which must be paid from our operating budget. A
possible source of such funds is CEDAC and possibly LISC. We will also build in the maximurny
allowed developer fee. Funders determine the percentage of a project’s total developiment costs they
will allow for a developer fee, DHCD usually allows 15%, Masshousing up to 20% and the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston up to 15%.

B. Pursue opportunities to increase income by providing fees for services to other nonprofits in Newton
and elsewhere. The board revisited the idea of CAN-DO either collaborating with or acting as a
consultant for other area nonprofits interested in developing housing. I have had discussions with at
least one group who approached us to ask if we would be interested in acting as the developer for a
property they would own and operate.

C. Working with Newton Housing Partnership and others to pursue City of Newton building and
construction fee waivers.

D. Increase in Fundraising Activities — The Board of Directors has made a commitment to engage in
additional small fundraising events, as well as a second major fundraiser. The board is exploring
several activities for the fall and winter to raise approximately $10,000 including a craft fair ($4000-
$5000); a clambake excursion ($1000); a house party with a sports personality; ($2000); falt
newsletter and annual appeals ($1500). Of course these plans are asp rational and will present a
significant challenge given the current economic environment. We will also continue to pursue grants
from new and old sources.

E. In 2010, Board will explore a Capital Campaign, It has been suggested that despite the difficult
financial times; this might be an opportune to engage in a multi-year capital campaign. We will
engage a consultant to provide guidance to undertake a campaign of between 300 to 400 thousand
dollars. Most of which will be used to establish an endowment to support our operating expenses. If
our consultant thinks it is feasible we will some portion (up to $50,000) to reduce our Cambridge
Savings Bank loan.

L STRATEGY FOR ENHANCING ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY

Since its birth in 1994, CAN-DO’s focus has been primarily on the development of affordable units rather than
the growth of the organization. Fourteen years later it still has only one paid staff person even though it has assets in
excess of $8 million. One of the strengths of the organization is that it has had very consistent board members who are
committed to the mission of the organization. However, it is not a “high-powered” board; none of the board members
are wealthy or have access to great wealth. Our efforts to recruit new board members are hampered by federal statute.
One third of the board members must have family incomes that fall within the low-moderate income ranges as
established by HUD. While the aim is worthy it has been problematic to identify such candidates.

The board and the executive director are in the process of identifying potential candidates for board
membership with specific skills not included among the current board members including housing development, legal
and organizational management. In addition we are seeking suggestions for potential low-moderate income individuals




with the interest and the time to serve. It is our hope that with the restructuring of our financial position, we will izatie
to attract individuals willing to take on the challenge of making us a stronger and more viable organization.

The Board has also determined that it is necessary to revisit its prior efforts to develop a 3-5 year strategic plan
which includes:

Identifying techniques to strengthen the role of board members
Develop a 5-year succession plan for Executive Director

Identify ways to increase support for Executive Director for day to day operation until such time as
there are funds to do so.

Iv. OPERATING RESERVES

One of the items raised at the last months meeting with the Planning and Development Board was concern about the
lack of reserve for each property. While it is certainly desirable to have a reserve for each property; that has not been
possible especially for our 2-family properties. It is important to note that all of our 2-family properties are over 100
years old. Each underwent modest rehabs at the time of purchase. Our first priority has been to ensure that ongoing and
immediate repairs are made and that the properties are maintained so that they are not visibly unattractive. While costs,
especially taxes and water and sewer, have increased, the Section 8 voucher rents have not. So it is not unusual in any
given month for the expenses to exceed the income for a given property. We cover that shortfall by moving funds from
another property and sometimes we have to transfer funds from the organizational operating budget. Thus placing
further strain on our budget. At those properties with more than two units we fund a reserve with excess income at the
end of the year, if there is any.

V. POSSIBLE COST-CUTTING OPTIONS

We were also asked to examine our budget to see if there were any opportunities for cost-cutting options. As we
consider the current budget, we did not identify any specific reductions. The major expenses in the budget are related to
staff, rent and accounting. '

The only staff person, the Executive Director, has not had a salary increase in 4 years, professional conference and
associated travel expenses were eliminated from the budget last year. We just renewed our current lease, with no
increase. However, we are exploring opportunities to collaborate with other nonprofits on shared services. It is possible
that some of accounting expenses could be reduced by such an endeavor.

I have attempted to address all the issues set forth in the recommendation and raised in the meeting. Again, I would
remind you that the position that CAN-DO finds itself in at this moment is not entirely of its making. I would also ask
that you look at our circumstances as not unique for a nonprofit developer of affordable housing; there are other
nonprofits that have been in existence much longer, and with more depth in staff and financial resources who have also
been impacted by the market. The approved debt forgiveness of the NHRF loans is the foundation for the financial
restructuring with other lenders.

In closing, I want to emphasize that CAN-DO’s future is dependent upon our moving forward with a new project as
soon as possible. We look forward to working with you and others interested in our success to fulfilling our mission to
develop affordable housing in Newton.

Sincerely,

Exécutive Director
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PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT BOARD

MEETING AS THE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

WRITTEN MATERIAL FOR MARCH 1, 2010, MEETING:

2. Letter: from CAN-DO to the Planning and Development Board

Attachments:

a. Total Purchase and Loss for CAN-DO (at Dec 31) 2009 compared to total
Purchase and Loss (at Dec 31) 2008

b. Operating Purchase and Loss for CAN-DO (excludes gains/losses from
property sales) for 2008 and 2009

c. 2009 Purchase and Loss for CAN-DO assuming debt had been forgiven
for 2009

d. 2009 Purchase and Loss and 2010 Budget Purchase and Loss for each
project subject to debt forgiveness

e. CAN-DO 2010 Operating Purchase and Loss
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February 15, 2010

Ms. Tabetha McCartney, Chair

Newton Planning and Development Board
Newton City Hall

1000 Commonwesalth Avenue

Newton, MA 02459

RE: Update on CAN-DO’s Financial Status
Dear Ms. McCartney:

| am writing to provide an update on CAN-DO’ s plan to achieve long-term financial
stability. At the Planning and Development Board meeting on July 13" we discussed
with the Board our plans to address the following major issues facing the organization at
that time:

A. Restructuring of the outstanding construction loan from the 1101 Chestnut Street
project (Millhouse Commons). has occurred and monthly payments are being
made

B. The*TVB” Unsecured Obligations' were assumed into the refinancing of the
existing mortgage of $160,000 on 11-13 Cambria Road.

C. Consolidation of credit card debt. Despite our request to several banks we were
not successful in obtaining a bank willing to consolidate the unsecured loans We
continue to make the monthly payments and no longer use them. As our
financial circumstancesimprove, we will once more pursue consolidation.

D. Sale of 29 Coyne Road took place in August and the TVB mortgage was paid off.

We also discussed a one to three year strategy for strengthening our
financial existence, which included:

A. Reducing Financial Risk when Planning Projects. We indicated that over
the next three years we would focus primarily on “as of right” rental projects with
a pre-devel opment period, construction period and occupancy of lessthan 18
months. We are currently in the process of anew project. It isa“by-right” project
requiring no permitting, the renovations are minimal, and we expect occupancy
within 12 months of the inception of the project. We also stated that we would
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build into the budget developer fees more consistent with the industry norm and
the project includes a 12.5 % fee.

B. Providing fees for services was identified as a method of increasing CAN-
DO’sincome. No opportunity has presented itself to date; but we will continue to
seek those opportunities.

C. We will continue to seek construction fee waivers supported by the New
the Newton Housing Partnership and othersin the city.

D. We set forth a goal to increase our fundraising income by $10,000 for the
for the remainder of the year. As of the writing of this memo, we have received a
little over $16,000 from fundraising and donations including our Annual Appeal.

E We committed to enhancing our organizational capacity. We have not yet
made significant progress due in part to anticipation of changesin the board. At
least 2 of our board members have given notice of their intention to resign from
the board. It seems appropriate to wait until we recruit replacements and then
include them in a strategic planning process.

F. There was a discussion regarding the lack of operating reserves for each of
the properties. We have addressed that concern for our new Veteran House
project by including in the devel opment budget a $10,000 reserve to be
capitalized.

G. The Board of Directors continues to examine and be prudent in its operating
expenditures. A member of the Board suggested that the amount spent for
auditing and bookkeeping could be reduced through bidding. While we have not
put the audit out for bid, we have gone through a hiring process for a new
bookkeeper and found that the amount currently being paid is competitive with
the needed skill set.

During the meeting, | emphasized that CAN-DO’ s future was dependent upon our

ability to move forward with a new project as soon as possible. Y our support enabled us
to do that and we are feeling energized at the prospect of our new Veteran House project.

Finally, included in your packet are a series of spreadsheets which indicate

CAN-DO's status by property; as well as the operating budget and budgets for 2010 for
each property as well and an operating budget. Thereis a page for each of the following:

1 Total P&L for CAN-DO at Dec 31 2009 compared to total P& L at Dec 31,
2008:

2. Operating P& L (excludes gains/losses from property sales) for 2008 and
20009:

3. 2009 P& L assuming debt had been forgiven for entire 2009;
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4, 2009 P& L (from rental income ONLY) and 2010 Budget P& L for each
project subject to debt forgiveness from rental income ONLY with principal and
interest adjusted for new 2010

year; all income and expenses the same as 2009 with exception of

11-13 Cambrialegal fees which were reduced (these were for one time loan
closings); and

5. Prepared total 2010 operating P& L for total Cando adjusted for principal
and interest payments for the projects subject to the debt

forgiveness

Sincerely,

Josephine McNeil
Executive Director



Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4000 -
4100 -
4102 -
4150 -
4200 -
4250 -
4300 -
4550 -

Total Income

Expense

5000 -
6100 -
6120 -
6135 -
6140 -
6145 -
6150 -
6155 -
6156 -
6157 -
6160 -
6165 -
6170 -

6171

6172 .
6173 -
6175 -
6180 -
6185 -
6190 -
6195 -
6200 -
6205 -
6210 -

6213

6215 -
6220 -

6221

6222 -

6230
6235

6238 -
6240 -
6315 -
6320 -
6345 -

CAN-DO

Fiscal Year Total Profit & Loss Comparison #28-10
Fiscal Year 2008 - 2009
Jan - Dec 09 Jan - Dec 08 $ Change

Grants 79,029.71 137,956.29 -58,926.58
Contributions & Donations 0.00 20,398.57 -20,398.57
Fundraising 118,477.94 100,465.50 18,012.44
Rent 370,011.00 380,034.28 -10,023.28
Interest Income 88.96 104.86 -15.90
Laundry Income 2,459.00 3,048.54 -589.54
Other Income 400.00 9,874.45 -9,474.45
Management Fee Income 17,428.75 5,000.00 12,428.75
587,895.36 656,882.49 -68,987.13

Salary and Related 128,075.63 121,186.83 6,888.80
Advertising 867.79 803.82 63.97
Bank Charges 2,743.35 1,298.76 1,444.59
Conference Fees 372.10 0.00 372.10
Depreciation 208,000.00 208,233.00 -233.00
Donations 400.00 525.00 -125.00
Dues and Subscriptions 1,574.00 2,774.66 -1,200.66
Insurance D & O 2,127.85 1,225.60 902.25
Insurance-Facilites 20,658.58 28,115.36 -7,456.78
Insurance -Office & Auto 1,848.04 1,496.81 351.23
Interest Expense 133,223.71 173,032.56 -39,808.85
Miscellaneous 622.94 148.10 474.84
Management Fees 20,921.12 24,885.49 -3,964.37

- Administrative Fees 18.50 1,300.00 -1,281.50
Supportive Services 12,616.00 11,462.00 1,154.00
Condo Fees 4,296.00 4,296.00 0.00
Postage and Delivery 1,129.97 1,447.89 -317.92
Printing 6,490.85 7,940.66 -1,449.81
Payroll Fees 8,078.13 1,205.83 6,872.30
Professional Fees - Accounting 21,419.89 2411716 -2,697.27
Filing Fees 560.25 1,350.50 -790.25
Rent Expense 25,520.00 24,721.45 798.55
Supplies 2,093.24 3,124.08 -1,030.84
Exterminating 716.00 1,269.00 -553.00

- Janitorial 1,610.00 2,700.00 -1,090.00
Repairs 950.00 487.41 462.59
Landscaping 4,270.00 10,099.00 -5,829.00

- Facility Maintenance 37,655.12 26,179.62 11,475.50
Snow Removal 10,871.50 7,036.00 3,835.50
- Telephone 3,535.67 3,544 .42 -8.75
- Travel 126.28 1,708.39 -1,582.11
Auto lease 3,286.54 3,608.43 -321.89
Parking 14.00 0.00 14.00
Consultant 8,761.25 5,178.75 3,582.50
Legal Fees 3,197.00 497.50 2,699.50
Security 138.32 333.00 -194.68
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CAN-DO

Fiscal Year Total Profit & Loss Comparison

6355 - Utilities
6359 - Internet expense
6400 - Property Taxes

6710 - Fundraising Fees & Events

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
8200 - In-kind Donation
8400 - Debt Forgiven
8500 - Condo Owner Receipts
8700 - Project Sales Gain/Loss
Total Other Income

Other Expense
9200 - Development Costs
9300 - Capital Costs

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

#28-10
Fiscal Year 2008 - 2009
Jan - Dec 09 Jan - Dec 08 $ Change
31,553.98 36,665.99 -5,112.01
63.34 0.00 63.34
38,861.38 42,159.62 -3,298.24
13,405.60 6,239.08 7,166.52
762,673.92 792,397.77 -29,723.85
-174,778.56 -135,515.28 -39,263.28
0.00 587.00 -587.00
920,394.01 108,455.00 811,939.01
0.00 15,480.68 -15,480.68
-574,843.37 -432,117.07 -142,726.30
345,550.64 -307,594.39 653,145.03
572.76 2,190.00 -1,617.24
0.00 3,399.49 -3,399.49
572.76 5,589.49 -5,016.73
344,977.88 -313,183.88 658,161.76
170,199.32 -448,699.16 618,898.48
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Jan - Dec 09
Assume Debt
Forgiven for Full

Total Actual Year
Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
4000 - Grants 79,029.71 79,029.71
4100 - Contributions & Donations - -
4102 - Fundraising 118,477.94 118,477.94
4150 - Rent 370,011.00 370,011.00
4200 - Interest Income 88.96 88.96
4250 - Laundry Income 2,459.00 2,459.00
4300 - Other Income 400.00 400.00
4550 - Management Fee Income 17,428.75 17,428.75

Total Income 587,895.36 587,895.36

Expense
5000 - Salary and Related 128,075.63 128,075.63
6100 - Advertising 867.79 867.79
6120 - Bank Charges 2,743.35 2,743.35
6135 - Conference Fees 372.10 372.10
6140 - Depreciation 208,000.00 208,000.00
6145 - Donations 400.00 400.00
6150 - Dues and Subscriptions 1,574.00 1,574.00
6155 - Insurance D & O 2,127.85 2,127.85
6156 - Insurance-Facilites 20,658.58 20,658.58
6157 - Insurance -Office & Auto 1,848.04 1,848.04
6160 - Interest Expense 133,223.71 132,015.86
6165 - Miscellaneous 622.94 622.94
6170 - Management Fees 20,921.12 20,921.12
6171 - Administrative Fees 18.50 18.50
6172 - Supportive Services 12,616.00 12,616.00
6173 - Condo Fees 4,296.00 4,296.00
6175 - Postage and Delivery 1,129.97 1,129.97
6180 - Printing 6,490.85 6,490.85
6185 - Payroll Fees 8,078.13 8,078.13
6190 - Professional Fees - Accounting 21,419.89 21,419.89
6195 - Filing Fees 560.25 560.25
6200 - Rent Expense 25,520.00 25,520.00
6205 - Supplies 2,093.24 2,093.24
6210 - Exterminating 716.00 716.00
6213 - Janitorial 1,610.00 1,610.00
6215 - Repairs 950.00 950.00
6220 - Landscaping 4,270.00 4,270.00
6221 - Facility Maintenance 37,655.12 37,655.12
6222 - Snow Removal 10,871.50 10,871.50
6230 - Telephone 3,535.67 3,535.67
6235 - Travel 126.28 126.28
6238 - Auto lease 3,286.54 3,286.54
6240 - Parking 14.00 14.00
6315 - Consultant 8,761.25 8,761.25
6320 - Legal Fees 3,197.00 3,197.00



6345
6355

6710

- Security
- Utilities
6359 -
6400 -

Internet expense
Property Taxes

- Fundraising Fees & Events

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Depreciation

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income

Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

Assume Debt

Forgiven for Full

Total Actual Year
138.32 138.32
31,553.98 31,553.98
63.34 63.34
38,861.38 38,861.38
13,405.60 13,405.60
762,673.92 761,466.07

(174,778.56)

(173,570.71)

208,000.00 208,000.00
133,223.71 132,015.86
166,445.15 166,445.15

51,660.11 40,700.61
133,223.71 132,015.86
184,883.82 172,716.47

$ (18,438.67)  $ (6,271.32)

#28-10
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Budget 2010

January through December 2010

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4150 -

Rent

Total Income

Expense

5000 -
6120 -
6145 -
6156 -
6160 -
6170 -
6185 -
6190 -
6195 -
6205 -
6210 -
6215 -

6221

Salary and Related
Bank Charges
Donations
Insurance-Facilites
Interest Expense
Management Fees
Payroll Fees
Professional Fees - Accounting
Filing Fees
Supplies
Exterminating
Repairs

- Facility Maintenance
6222 .
6230 -
6320 -
6355 -

Snow Removal
Telephone
Legal Fees
Utilities

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

14 Nonantum -
Garfield House

Budget

$ 58,301.00

58,301.00

4,708.20
66.85
300.00
2,952.00
6,908.00
2,888.04
2,833.78
1,000.00
226.51
240.00
950.00
10,454.91
2,656.00
58.85
137.00
9,340.73

45,720.87

12,580.13

6,908.00

19,488.13

1,634.92
6,908.00

8,442.92

$ 11,045.21

#28-10
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Debt Forgiven July 2009 #2s-10
January through December 2009

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4150 -

Rent

Total Income

Expense

5000 -
6120 -
6145 -
6156 -
6160 -
6170 -
6185 -
6190 -
6195 -
6205 -
6210 -
6215 -

6221

Salary and Related
Bank Charges
Donations
Insurance-Facilites
Interest Expense
Management Fees
Payroll Fees
Professional Fees - Accounting
Filing Fees
Supplies
Exterminating
Repairs

- Facility Maintenance
6222 .
6230 -
6320 -
6355 -

Snow Removal
Telephone
Legal Fees
Utilities

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

14 Nonantum - Garfield House

Assume Debt
Forgiven for Full

Actual Year
58,301.00 58,301.00
58,301.00 58,301.00

4,708.20 4,708.20
66.85 66.85
300.00 300.00
2,952.00 2,952.00
7,876.91 7,876.91
2,888.04 2,888.04
2,833.78 2,833.78
1,000.00 1,000.00
226.51 226.51
240.00 240.00
950.00 950.00
10,454.91 10,454.91
2,656.00 2,656.00
58.85 58.85
137.00 137.00
9,340.73 9,340.73
46,689.78 46,689.78
11,611.22 11,611.22
7,876.91 7,876.91
19,488.13 19,488.13
5,370.21 2,076.04
7,876.91 7,876.91
13,247.12 9,952.95
6,241.01 9,535.18
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Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4150 -

Rent

Total Income

Expense
6156 -
6160 -
6170 -

- Janitorial

6220 -

6221 -

6213

6222
6315

Insurance-Facilites
Interest Expense
Management Fees

Landscaping
Facility Maintenance

- Snow Removal
- Consultant

6320 -
6355 -
6400 -

Legal Fees
Utilities
Property Taxes

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income

Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

11-13 Cambria #2

Budget

$ 34,474.00

34,474.00

3,524.50
14,338.00
2,520.00
300.00
716.00
4,734.28
1,552.00
467.50
75.00
1,372.97
6,491.27

36,091.52

(1,617.52)

14,338.00

12,720.48

3,093.00
14,338.00

17,431.00

$ (4,710.52)
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Debt Forgiven July 2009 #2s-10
January through December 2009

11-13 Cambria #2

Assume Debt
Forgiven for Full

Actual Year
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4150 - Rent $ 34,474.00 34,474.00
Total Income 34,474.00 34,474.00
Expense
6156 - Insurance-Facilites 3,524.50 3,524.50
6160 - Interest Expense 12,666.11 12,666.11
6170 - Management Fees 2,520.00 2,520.00
6213 - Janitorial 300.00 300.00
6220 - Landscaping 716.00 716.00
6221 - Facility Maintenance 4,734.28 4,734.28
6222 . Snow Removal 1,552.00 1,552.00
6315 - Consultant 467.50 467.50
6320 - Legal Fees 2,679.00 2,679.00
6355 - Utilities 1,372.97 1,372.97
6400 - Property Taxes 6,491.27 6,491.27
Total Expense 37,023.63 37,023.63
Net Operating Income (2,549.63) (2,549.63)
Add back
Interest Expense 12,666.11 12,666.11
Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense 10,116.48 10,116.48
Total Debt Service All Properties
Principal 3,465.73 2,657.81
Interest Expense 12,666.11 12,666.11
Total Debt Service 16,131.84 15,323.92
Total Debt Service Coverage $ (6,015.36) (5,207.44)
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Budget 2010

January through December 2010

18-20 Cambria #1

#28-10

Budg_;et
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4150 - Rent $ 44,064.00
Total Income 44,064.00
Expense
6120 - Bank Charges (0.99)
6156 - Insurance-Facilites 4,087.00
6160 - Interest Expense 13,830.00
6170 - Management Fees 3,120.00
6195 . Filing Fees 75.00
6213 - Janitorial 250.00
6220 - Landscaping 765.00
6221 - Facility Maintenance 4,157.07
6222 - Snow Removal 1,552.00
6315 - Consultant 467.50
6320 - Legal Fees 72.00
6345 .- Security 138.32
6355 - Utilities 1,561.15
6400 - Property Taxes 6,778.22
Total Expense 36,852.27
Net Operating Income 7,211.73
Add back
Interest Expense 13,830.00
Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense 21,041.73
Total Debt Service All Properties
Principal 5,121.00
Interest Expense 13,830.00
Total Debt Service 18,951.00
Total Debt Service Coverage $ 2,090.73
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Debt Forgiven July 2009 #2s-10
January through December 2009

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4150 -

Rent

Total Income

Expense

6120 -
6156 -
6160 -
6170 -
6195 -
6213 -
6220 -

6221

Bank Charges
Insurance-Facilites
Interest Expense
Management Fees
Filing Fees
Janitorial
Landscaping

- Facility Maintenance
6222 .
6315 .
6320 -
6345 -
6355 -
6400 -

Snow Removal
Consultant
Legal Fees
Security
Utilities
Property Taxes

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

18-20 Cambria #1

Assume Debt
Forgiven for Full

Actual Year
44,064.00 44,064.00
44,064.00 44,064.00

(0.99) (0.99)
4,087.00 4,087.00
15,311.58 14,103.73
3,120.00 3,120.00
75.00 75.00
250.00 250.00
765.00 765.00
4,157.07 4,157.07
1,552.00 1,552.00
467.50 467.50
72.00 72.00
138.32 138.32
1,561.15 1,561.15
6,778.22 6,778.22
38,333.85 37,126.00
5,730.15 6,938.00
15,311.58 14,103.73
21,041.73 21,041.73
7,912.15 6,617.64
15,311.58 14,103.73
23,223.73 20,721.37
(2,182.00) 320.36

Page 1 of 1



CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Budget 2010

January through December 2010

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4150 -

Rent

Total Income

Expense

6120 -
6156 -
6160 -
6170 -
6195 -
6213 -
6220 -

6221

Bank Charges
Insurance-Facilites
Interest Expense
Management Fees
Filing Fees
Janitorial
Landscaping

- Facility Maintenance
6222 .
6315 .
6355 -
6400 -

Snow Removal
Consultant
Utilities
Property Taxes

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income

Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

20-22 Falmouth

Budget

$ 37,116.00

37,116.00

20.00
2,864.00
15,594.00
2,585.00
75.00
660.00
560.00
3,850.13
1,552.00
1,435.00
840.18
5,688.48

35,723.79

1,392.21

15,594.00

16,986.21

4,300.00
15,594.00

19,894.00

$ (2,907.79)

#28-10
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Debt Forgiven July 2009 #2s-10
January through December 2009

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4150 -

Rent

Total Income

Expense

6120 -
6156 -
6160 -
6170 -
6195 -
6213 -
6220 -

6221

Bank Charges
Insurance-Facilites
Interest Expense
Management Fees
Filing Fees
Janitorial
Landscaping

- Facility Maintenance
6222 .
6315 -
6355 -
6400 -

Snow Removal
Consultant
Utilities
Property Taxes

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

20-22 Falmouth

Assume Debt
Forgiven for Full

Actual Year
37,116.00 $ 37,116.00
37,116.00 37,116.00

20.00 20.00
2,864.00 2,864.00
15,080.62 15,080.62
2,585.00 2,585.00
75.00 75.00
660.00 660.00
560.00 560.00
3,850.13 3,850.13
1,552.00 1,552.00
1,435.00 1,435.00
840.18 840.18
5,688.48 5,688.48
35,210.41 35,210.41
1,905.59 1,905.59
15,080.62 15,080.62
16,986.21 16,986.21
5,930.47 4,597.15
15,080.62 15,080.62
21,011.09 19,677.77
(4,024.88) (2,691.56)
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Budget 2010 #28-10

January through December 2009

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4150 - Rent

Total Income

Expense
5000 - Salary and Related
6156 - Insurance-Facilites
6160 - Interest Expense
6165 - Miscellaneous
6170 - Management Fees
6172 - Supportive Services
6173 - Condo Fees
6185 - Payroll Fees
6190 - Professional Fees - Accounting
6195 - Filing Fees
6205 - Supplies
6220 - Landscaping
6221 . Facility Maintenance
6222 - Snow Removal
6230 - Telephone
6320 - Legal Fees
6355 - Utilities
6400 - Property Taxes
Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back
Interest Expense

Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties
Principal
Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

90 Christina - Kayla

House

Budget

90,459.00

90,459.00

5,620.20
815.08
18,809.00
622.94
4,648.08
12,616.00
4,296.00
3,395.25
1,000.00
50.00
552.00
7,093.16
130.50
98.06
75.00
7,710.73
8,098.97

75,630.97

14,828.03

18,809.00

33,637.03

7,683.00
18,809.00

26,492.00

7,145.03
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Debt Forgiven July 2009 #2s-10
January through December 2009

90 Christina - Kayla House

Assume Debt
Forgiven for Full

Actual Year
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4150 - Rent $ 90,459.00 90,459.00
Total Income 90,459.00 90,459.00
Expense
5000 - Salary and Related 5,620.20 5,620.20
6156 - Insurance-Facilites 815.08 815.08
6160 - Interest Expense 24,763.18 24,763.18
6165 - Miscellaneous 622.94 622.94
6170 - Management Fees 4,648.08 4,648.08
6172 - Supportive Services 12,616.00 12,616.00
6173 - Condo Fees 4,296.00 4,296.00
6185 - Payroll Fees 3,395.25 3,395.25
6190 - Professional Fees - Accounting 1,000.00 1,000.00
6195 . Filing Fees - -
6205 - Supplies 50.00 50.00
6220 - Landscaping 552.00 552.00
6221 . Facility Maintenance 7,093.16 7,093.16
6222 . Snow Removal 130.50 130.50
6230 - Telephone 98.06 98.06
6320 - Legal Fees 75.00 75.00
6355 . Utilities 7,710.73 7,710.73
6400 - Property Taxes 8,098.97 8,098.97
Total Expense 81,585.15 81,585.15
Net Operating Income 8,873.85 8,873.85
Add back
Interest Expense 24,763.18 24,763.18
Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense 33,637.03 33,637.03
Total Debt Service All Properties
Principal 10,833.55 7,937.29
Interest Expense 24,763.18 24,763.18
Total Debt Service 35,596.73 32,700.47
Total Debt Service Coverage $ (1,959.70) 936.56
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Budget 2010

January through December 2010

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4150 -

Rent

Total Income

Expense

6156 -
6160 -
6170 -
6195 -
6220 -

6221

Insurance-Facilites
Interest Expense
Management Fees
Filing Fees
Landscaping

- Facility Maintenance
6222 .
6355 -
6400 -

Snow Removal
Utilities
Property Taxes

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income

Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

163 Jackson

Budget

37,977.00

37,977.00

2,864.00
15,124.00
2,760.00
75.00
677.00
5,396.58
2,092.00
2,492.65
5,807.24

37,288.47

688.53

15,124.00

15,812.53

4,338.00
15,124.00

19,462.00

$

(3,649.47)

#28-10
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CAN-DO

Profit & Loss From Rental Income - Debt Forgiven July 2009 #2s-10
January through December 2009

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4150 -

Rent

Total Income

Expense

6156 -
6160 -
6170 -
6195 -
6220 -

6221

Insurance-Facilites
Interest Expense
Management Fees
Filing Fees
Landscaping

- Facility Maintenance
6222 .
6355 -
6400 -

Snow Removal
Utilities
Property Taxes

Total Expense

Net Operating Income

Add back

Interest Expense

Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties

Principal

Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

163 Jackson

Assume Debt
Forgiven for Full

Actual Year
37,977.00 37,977.00
37,977.00 37,977.00

2,864.00 2,864.00
15,515.59 15,515.59
2,760.00 2,760.00
75.00 75.00
677.00 677.00
5,396.58 5,396.58
2,092.00 2,092.00
2,492.65 2,492.65
5,807.24 5,807.24
37,680.06 37,680.06
296.94 296.94
15,515.59 15,515.59
15,812.53 15,812.53
5,930.71 4,597.39
15,515.59 15,515.59
21,446.30 20,112.98
(5,633.77) (4,300.45)

Page 1 of 1



CAN-DO

Operating Profit & Loss - Budget 2010 #28-10

Fiscal Year 2010

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4000 -
4100 -
4102 -
4150 -
4200 -
4250 -
4300 -
4550 -

Grants

Contributions & Donations
Fundraising

Rent

Interest Income

Laundry Income

Other Income
Management Fee Income

Total Income

Expense

5000 -
6100 -
6120 -
6135 -
6140 -
6145 .
- Dues and Subscriptions
6155 -
6156 -
6157 -
6160 -
6165 -
6170 -
- Administrative Fees
6172 .
6173 -
6175 -
6180 -
6185 -
6190 -
6195 -
6200 -
6205 -
6210 -

6150

6171

6213

6221

6230
6235

Salary and Related
Advertising

Bank Charges
Conference Fees
Depreciation
Donations

Insurance D & O
Insurance-Facilites
Insurance -Office & Auto
Interest Expense
Miscellaneous
Management Fees

Supportive Services
Condo Fees

Postage and Delivery
Printing

Payroll Fees

Professional Fees - Accounting

Filing Fees
Rent Expense
Supplies
Exterminating

- Janitorial
6215 -
6220 -
- Facility Maintenance
6222 -
- Telephone
- Travel

6238 -
6240 -
6315 -
6320 -

Repairs
Landscaping

Snow Removal

Auto lease
Parking

Consultant
Legal Fees

Jan - Dec 10

Budget

79,029.71
118,477.94
370,011.00
88.96
2,459.00
400.00

17,428.75

587,895.36

128,075.63
867.79
2,743.35
372.10
208,000.00
400.00
1,574.00
2,127.85
20,658.58
1,848.04
126,612.72
622.94
20,921.12
18.50
12,616.00
4,296.00
1,129.97
6,490.85
8,078.13
21,419.89
560.25
25,520.00
2,093.24
716.00
1,610.00
950.00
4,270.00
37,655.12
10,871.50
3,5635.67
126.28
3,286.54
14.00
8,761.25
593.00
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CAN-DO

Operating Profit & Loss - Budget 2010

Fiscal Year 2010

6345 .- Security

6355 - Utilities

6359 - Internet expense

6400 - Property Taxes

6710 - Fundraising Fees & Events
Total Expense

Net Operating Income
Add back

Depreciation
Interest Expense

Net Operating Income
Excluding Depreciation and Interest Expense

Total Debt Service All Properties
Principal
Interest Expense

Total Debt Service

Total Debt Service Coverage

Budget

138.32
31,553.98
63.34
38,861.38
13,405.60

753,458.93

(165,563.57)

208,000.00
126,612.72

169,049.15

38,287.21
126,612.72

164,899.93

4,149.22

#28-10
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#28-10
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT BOARD MINUTES

March 1, 2010 City Hall, Planning and Development Department Rm 209, 7:30 p.m.
1000 Commonwealth Avenue, Newton, Massachusetts 02459
Action Item: Update from Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton Development
Organization, Inc. (CAN-DO) on the organization’s progress in meeting the goals outlined
in their July 8, 2009 letter to the Planning and Development Board.

Josephine McNeil, the executive director of CAN-DO, provided the Board with a history of the
organization. CAN-DO was formed in response to the availability of federal funds for a
Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) in Newton. The City approached
Newton Community Development Foundation (NCDF) for assistance in identifying potential
board members for Newton’s CHDO. In 1994 Ms. McNeil became one of six initial CAN-DO
board members. CAN-DO collaborated with the Second Step to develop its first project, Garfield
House, in 1996. Garfield House is a transitional home for sutvivors of domestic violence. In 1999
CAN-DO received a CDBG capacity building grant from the City. This grant enabled the
organization to hire Ms. McNeil as a part time Executive Director. In last ten years, CAN-DO has
developed 37 units, 30 of which are deed restricted. CAN-DO worked with Newton Community
Service Center to develop the Christina Street project. This project was the organization’s first
experience with a Chapter 40B project. Due to neighborhood opposition the project took a year
longer to complete than was originally anticipated.

CAN-DO has expanded their development and management portfolio to include affordable rental
units. These units currently house families with Section 8 vouchers. CAN-DO has assisted a total of
45 homeless families (including 80 children). An additional 26 families (including 30 children) have
been assisted with permanent rental housing and eight families have been provided with
homeownership opportunities in Newton as a result of CAN-DO.

CAN-DO’s mission driven efforts have led the organization to assume risk. For example, CAN-
DO recently utilized one of their vacant rental units to house a homeless single mother with a child.
The family was taken in with the expectation that the City would soon receive Homeless Prevention
and Rapid Re-Housing Program (HPRP) funds, as part of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act, which could be applied to this situation. These funds took six months longer
than anticipated to come through.

Another example of this risk is exemplified in the Millhouse project. Four of the six units were
affordable in this project. When the housing market declined, CAN-DO was unable to financially
recover, because the sale of the market rate units no longer supported the affordable units.
Millhouse took over three years to complete and CAN-DO had no developer fee to show for the
project. The project had a detrimental effect on the organization’s financial situation and left CAN-
DO operating off of credit card debt. The debt forgiveness approved by the Planning and
Development Board in June 2009 offered some financial relief.

Over the next several years CAN-DO plans to develop a two unit, rental development targeted to
veterans. The developer fees anticipated as a result of this project are expected to improve CAN-
DO’s financial situation further.

Ken Sinclair, CAN-DO’s treasurer, reviewed the financial information submitted in the Planning
and Development Board member’s packets. Mr. Sinclair explained that each property should be
able to financially stand on its own. These projects should be making a management payment to
CAN-DO’s central operating budget. This is currently not the situation due to the organization’s
diminished and/or lack of developer fees. However, CAN-DO’s fundraising has gone up 18%
from 2008 to 2009. This is particularly remarkable given the current economy.



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT BOARD March 1, 2010 mi#aR510
CAN-DO update p.20f2

The 2009 audit is in progress and CAN-DO will be submitting the results of that audit to the
Planning and Development Board. The organization’s profit and loss statement, which includes the
direct loan forgiveness, shows an $18,000 loss for 2009. However, without this loan forgiveness
CAN-DO would have had a $29,000 to $30,000 loss in 2009. In 2010, projections show that the
organization will experience a year end gain of $4,000. While this is not where the CAN-DO hopes
to be it represents a good start to regaining better financial control.

T. McCartney indicated that she was not pleased with the financial information submitted by CAN-
DO and stated that more thought should have been put into the pro forma. Instead of carrying
over all costs as a constant CAN-DO should account for increasing costs and anticipated vacancies.
There were several individual property management fees, which include salary, payroll fees, and
standard maintenance, that were very high. T. McCartney would like CAN-DO to strive toward a
standard management fee of 5% to 10%, instead of the current 18% to 20%. In addition, certain
maintenance costs in a rental property operation should be capitalized instead of expensed (as is
currently being done). A balance sheet, showing the debt on each property and the organization’s
cash position should also be submitted to the Board. T. McCartney would like CAN-DO’s board to
evaluate the operating numbers with the goal of increasing the financial effectiveness of each
property. For example, the expenses at Garfield House account for 80% of the property’s income.
Going forward CAN-DO should provide information to the Board on these expenses. In addition,
the services grant that goes along with the (off setting) services expense for Christina Street should
be shown as income for the property. T. McCartney would also like quarterly meetings to take place
between the Board and CAN-DO.

J. Moss wondered why the developer fee for Veteran’s House would be higher than the other
properties developed by CAN-DO. Ms. McNeil responded that CAN-DO plans to take the
maximum developer fee (12.5%) in order to enable the organization to set aside reserves for each
property. In the past CAN-DO’s developer fee was 5% to 7% but this has not been enough to
sustain the financial viability of the organization.

D. Banash stated that he believes CAN-DO should hire an internal auditor to provide the type of
financial analysis that T. McCartney completed as a volunteer. Ms. McNeil stated that the
perspectives and methodologies of financial analysts differ from person to person. For example,
while T. McCartney has one philosophy with regard to capitalizing expenses, CAN-DO’s
bookkeeper adheres to a different methodology.

It was Ms. McNeil’s understanding that the Board was looking for a comparison of CAN-DO
financial status prior to the loan forgiveness, after the loan forgiveness, and going forward. A
financial analysis on each property was not conducted. If the Board would like to review this type
of analysis they need to be aware that additional funds will need to be expended by CAN-DO to
pay the bookkeeper for additional hours of work. T. McCartney responded that obtaining this type
of help is also a matter of board development.

Mr. Lepie stated that he does not believe CAN-DO addressed how they were improving the
financial status of the organization and explaining their plans for the future. He also believes that
there are accessibility issues with CAN-DO’s new project, Veterans House. T. McCartney
responded that is it unreasonable to expect CAN-DO to have completed a 180 turn in the past nine
months but progress is being made by the organization to change directions.
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Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston
2009 AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

www.fhlbboston.com/communitydevelopment/fundingprograms/ahp/downloads/ahp implementation pla

n_09.pdf

p- 18 of 49

Developer fee

Typically, the developer’s fee includes any developer overhead,
fee and development consultant costs, the total of which shall not
exceed 12.5 percent of total development cost. net of fee.
However. if a primary funding source (such as the Low Income
Housing Tax Credit program or HUD) allows a higher fee or
requires a lower fee amount, the allowed amount of the developer
fee of the AHP shall be the same, net of fee. In such case, any
allowed developer fee in excess of 12.5 percent, net of fee, must
be loaned back into the development, treated as equity or paid out
of surplus cash flow in reasonably even installments, as available,
over the 15 year retention period, at a market rate of interest. In
any other case, whenever the amount of developer fee proposed 1s
in excess of 12.5 percent, net of fee, the developer fee and the
requested subsidy amount will be proportionately reduced.

NOTE: The FHLBB is providing a grant
of $50,000 for the Veteran House project.
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#207-07
CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES
Adopted January 22, 2008

The government of the City of Newton exists to provide quality community services to
residents, businesses and visitors to the Garden City. Governmental services that benefit
all or substantially all community stakeholders are financed principally from the local
property tax and accounted for in the City’s General Fund. Business-like services that
benefit distinct segments of the population are financed principally from user fees and
charges and are accounted for in special revenue funds.

Budgets are used for planning and accountability purposes for all City funds. Formal
fixed budgets, recommended by the Mayor and adopted by the Board of Aldermen, are
used for all governmental and business-like services, and nothing in this document is to
in any manner restrict the Mayor’s authority and responsibility to allocate financial
resources in the manner in which he determines best meets the needs of the City, and the
Board of Aldermen’s authority and responsibility to pass upon those financial allocations.

Financial planning: It is the policy of the City to update annually the City’s General
Fund multi-year financial forecast. Based upon consensus revenue and expenditure
assumptions for existing service levels, revenue estimates will be developed by the City’s
senior financial management team (Chief Administrative Officer; Chief Budget Officer;
Treasurer/Collector; Chair of the Board of Assessors; Assistant Superintendent of
Schools for Finance and Planning; and the Comptroller of Accounts). Revenue estimates
and expenditure assumptions for the annual budget will be developed by the Chief
Budget Officer.

The multi-year forecast shall include actual revenue and expenditures for the last five
complete fiscal years; the current year budget; and complete operating and capital
expenditure and revenue projections for the next five fiscal years, and shall be structured
around major revenue and expenditure classifications in the City’s accounting system
chart of accounts.

The annual five-year forecast shall be submitted to the Mayor for his review,
modification and approval not later than 60 days after the conclusion of each fiscal year.
Not later than 120 days after fiscal year-end, the Mayor shall submit the five-year
financial forecast to the Board of Aldermen with such modifications as he deems
appropriate. In accordance with state law, not later than 60 days prior to the fiscal year-
end, the Mayor will submit a recommended annual operating budget to the Board of
Aldermen for the ensuing fiscal year. The Board of Aldermen will adopt the budget
within 45 days of receipt and the adopted budget will become effective on the first day of
the new fiscal year.

#78-10
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Revenue budgeting: While General Fund revenue financial forecast estimates are
expected to capture 99% of total expected revenue for the year, the Mayor is solely
responsible for the revenue estimates contained in the annual budget which the Mayor
submits to the Board of Aldermen.

e Property taxes — The City expects to annually levy property taxes up to the statutory
limit imposed by Proposition 2 % . Projected new growth will be estimated at the
median annual new growth rate for the trailing 5 year period, and the allowance for
exemptions and abatements will be budgeted at between 1% and 5% of the gross
property tax levy.

e Motor excise taxes — Motor vehicle excise taxes will be estimated based upon the
prior year actual total plus the average annual rate of growth over the trailing five
year period.

e Hotel room occupancy taxes — Hotel room occupancy taxes will be estimated based
upon the prior year actual total plus the average annual rate of growth over the
trailing five year period.

e Inspectional services permits — Inspectional services permit income will be estimated
based upon the median annual revenue for the trailing five year period.

e Investment income — Investment income will be estimated based upon the prior year
actual revenue, adjusted for the Treasurer/Collector’s forecast of interest rate changes
over the next twelve month period.

e All other local non-tax revenue — Revenues from charges for services; penalties and
fines; and in-lieu-of-taxes will be estimated based upon the prior year actual
revenues, adjusted for any proposed change in fee/fine schedules, and/or non-
recurring prior year revenue collections.

e Unrestricted state and federal aid — State “Cherry Sheet” aid will be estimated based
upon the most recent information posted on the Massachusetts Department of
Revenue website, or, in the absence of any such information, the Mayor’s best
estimate of the probable amount of such state assistance for the next fiscal year. All
other state and federal aid will be estimated based upon actual revenues for the most
recent fiscal year, adjusted for any known changes in reimbursement policies and
rates.

e Transfers from other funds — Reimbursements to the General Fund for the
administrative and support services provided to other self-supporting funds will be
based upon an annual analysis of the estimated value of such administrative and
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support services to the other funds. Under no circumstances shall the dollar amount
of any reimbursement exceed the estimated value of services provided by the General
Fund to the other self-supporting funds, in accordance with state law.

Free Cash — Free Cash may be used as a financing source for the operating budget to
the extent that the total amount being used can reasonably be expected to be available
for support of the following year’s budget. However, it is not expected to serve as a
recurring source of budget financing.

The Mayor and the Chief Budget Officer may use any other method of estimating the
above revenues for the annual budget if they deem it appropriate, and may allocate
Free Cash in a manner that the Mayor, with the approval of the Board of Aldermen,
deems to be in the best interest of the City.

Expenditure budgeting - It is a goal of the City to develop expenditure budget estimates
that will be sufficient to address not less than 100% of projected operating requirements
of the various departments of the City for the next fiscal year.

Salaries and wages — It is the practice of the City that (A) budgeted salary and wage
appropriations will be sufficient to fund all full-time and permanent part-time
positions identified in each department’s table of organization and schedule of full
and permanent part-time personnel, at the appropriate union contract or salary
schedule rates for the new fiscal year. It is a goal of the City that General Fund
employee salaries and wages that are expected to be funded in full or in part from
funds other than the General Fund will be included in both the table of organization
and schedule of full-time and permanent part-time personnel with an identification of
the projected sources of financing for any reduction made in the appropriation for
such employees. It is the practice of the City that, in the event that salary rates are
not known at the time that the budget is being prepared, all salary and wages will be
budgeted at current rates and provisions will be made for future wage and salary
increases in a separate wage reserve appropriation. It is the practice of the City that
salaries and wages will be budgeted based upon the exact number of pay periods for
the fiscal year. It is a goal of the City that public safety overtime will be budgeted at
levels sufficient to meet the median annual requirements for the trailing five year
period, adjusted for any extraordinary and non-recurring overtime requirements (i.e.
overtime to cover significant staff vacancies that have now been filed) or such other
method as the Chief Budget Officer determines.

Employee benefits — It is the practice of the City that funding will be included in each
department operating budget for the projected cost of providing contributory health,
life, dental and Medicare payroll taxes for all eligible employees at the benefit rates
expected for the new fiscal year.
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Pension contribution — To the extent required by state law, the annual contribution to
the defined benefit contributory retirement fund shall not be less than the annual
required contribution (ARC) prescribed by the Retirement Board’s actuary, and the
annual appropriation for non-contributory retirement benefits will be the benefit
estimate of the Retirement Board.

Energy and utilities — It is a goal of the City that funding for energy and utility needs
of the various departments of the City will be included at consumption levels
estimated by the various departments and at consistent unit prices estimated to be
reasonable by the Chief Budget Officer.

Debt service — It is the practice of the City that appropriations for interest and
principal will be the amounts certified by the Treasurer for the repayment of General
Fund current issued debt and any debt service on new permanent and/or temporary
debt that can be reasonably estimated by the Treasurer.

State and county charges — It is the practice of the City that the appropriation for
“Cherry Sheet” assessments will be the most recent estimates posted on the
Massachusetts Department of Revenue website, or, in the absence of such
information, 2 %2 % greater than the current year assessment and charge total.

Judgments and settlements — It is the practice of the City that the annual appropriation
for self-insured liability claims and settlements will not be less than the median
annual expenditure for this purpose for the trailing five year period, adjusted for any
other factors that may impact the actual amount required.

Snow and ice control — The City may make the annual appropriation for snow and ice
control purposes in an amount that will not be less than the median annual
expenditure for this purpose for the trailing five year period. It is the policy of the
City that, after Free Cash is certified, the Mayor will seek an appropriation of funds
into snow and ice accounts in amount equal to the difference between the amount of
the trailing five year average expenditure on snow and ice and the amount already in
the accounts.

Capital outlay and improvements — It is the practice of the City that the difference
between budgeted debt service and a minimum of 3% of total estimated revenues for
the year will be budgeted for future capital outlay and improvements; and,
additionally, it is the practice of the City that the sum of anticipated revenue from
Massachusetts School Building Authority debt service reimbursements for school
projects will be dedicated to capital financing.
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e Budget Reserve — It is the practice of the City that, in order to provide for
extraordinary and unforeseen revenue and expenditure contingencies, a Budget
Reserve contingency will be included in the General Fund budget. Itisa
recommendation that the amount of the reserve be increased to an amount equal to
0.5% (one half of one percent) of total estimated revenue.

e Each of the foregoing goals, policies and practices in these guidelines is subject to the
Mayor’s responsibility to request the appropriation of funds in a manner and in
amounts which he determines best meets the needs of the City of Newton and the
Board of Aldermen’s authority to approve them.

Property tax allowance for abatements and exemptions -- The Board of Assessors is
required by law to include a provision for real and personal property tax exemptions;
valuation abatements; and personal property tax uncollectibles in the annual tax levy. It
has been their practice to provide 1.0% - 1.5% of the gross annual tax levy for these
purposes and is determined annually by the Board of Assessors. They may base their
determination upon prior year experience and risk exposure for the new fiscal year, or
such other method as they deem appropriate. In addition, it has been the practice of the
Board to maintain a reserve from prior year Overlay Surplus balances not less than $1.1
million for extraordinary and unforeseen abatement experience. It is expected that the
allowance will be at the upper end of the range in revaluation years. At least annually,
the Board of Assessors analyzes the balance in all outstanding abatement and exemption
reserves and makes an overlay surplus declaration for any balance(s) which exceed the
sum of uncollected personal property taxes and pending abatement claims for that fiscal
year’s reserve at such times as it determines to be appropriate. The Overlay Surplus shall
be available for appropriation by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. To the extent that
any overlay surplus balance remains unappropriated at June 30", it will be closed to Free
Cash.

Cash management and investments — Absent legal and/or contractual restrictions, City
operating cash will be pooled, with ownership information maintained in the City’s
accounting system. All investment income on temporarily idle cash will be credited to
General Fund revenue, unless legal authority exists to allocate the investment income to
another fund. Investment income earned on pooled cash will be allocated quarterly based
upon month end cash balances and Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT)
month end interest rates.

Investments will be limited to those authorized by state law and City investment policy.

General ledger cash and investment totals are reconciled to the Treasurer’s records and
supporting bank statements on a monthly basis.
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Risk management — The City purchases commercial insurance for only those risk
exposures that can not be effectively managed and financed internally.

e Property insurance — Commercial insurance, including terrorism coverage, is
purchased for all City buildings and their contents. Coverage is provided for
scheduled locations only, subject to a deductible of $100,000 per loss event.
Insured values are adjusted annually for both improvements to the structures and
an estimate of the increase in replacement values. Property insurance premiums
are currently financed from an inter-fund transfer from the City’s Building
Insurance Fund.

e Vehicle insurance — The City retains vehicle risk exposure for all vehicles, except
Parks and Recreation automobiles and vans used to transport members of the
public. The cost of the Parks and Recreation vehicle insurance premium is
financed from the Recreation Activity/Classes Revolving Fund. Staff of the City
Law Department manages all vehicle claims, and settlements are paid from an
annual appropriation in the Law Department budget.

e Liability insurance — The City retains all public liability risk exposures, except for
retirement system fiduciary liability, for which the Retirement Board purchases
commercial insurance coverage through a state-wide insurance pool, and special
events for which commercial liability insurance is required by law or contract. It
is the practice of the City that staff of the City Law Department manages all
liability claims, and settlements are paid from an annual appropriation in the Law
Department budget.

e Crime/employee dishonesty — Individual fidelity bonds are purchased for the City
Treasurer/Collector, Deputy Treasurer/Collector and City Clerk, as required by
state law. A fidelity bond is also purchased for the Chief Procurement Officer in
accordance with local ordinance. All other employees of the City are covered
under a blanket honesty bond, subject to deductibles of $5,000 and $10,000 per
loss.

e Workers” Compensation — It is the practice of the City that: (A) The City retains
all Workers” Compensation and public safety employee injured on duty risk
exposures; (B) The City’s Human Resources and Law Departments are
responsible for claims administration; (C) Public safety employee injured on duty
compensation is paid from the Police and Fire Department operating budgets; (D)
Workers’ Compensation benefits for non-public safety employees and police and
fire medical bills are paid from the City’s Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance
Fund; (E) The City contracts annually for an actuarial valuation of the Workers’
Compensation fund liability and a determination of the required annual
contribution to the self-insurance fund.
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Group health insurance - The City offers group health benefits to employees,
regularly working 20 or more hours per week and to retirees. The City retains the
full risk associated with health benefits coverage, subject to a $250,000 annual
limit on individual claims, which is covered through a commercial excess
insurance policy. The City contracts with Harvard-Pilgrim Health and Tufts
Health plans for claims administration services. Heath benefit self-insurance
premiums are established annually by the City, at a level expected to cover the
full cost of paid claims; incurred but unreported claims; claims administration;
excess insurance premiums; and a reserve for extraordinary and unforeseen claims
experience. The target claims reserve is two months of average paid claims.
Employees and retirees currently contribute 20% of the cost of coverage and the
City funds the balance. All self-insured group health insurance activity takes
place in a Group Health Insurance Fund, for which individual fund balances are
maintained for each benefit plan option.

All of the foregoing are the present practices of the City.

Official and officer compensation: The City expects to maintain compensation
policies designed to attract and retain the most qualified officials and officers
possible. Management level employees will be expected to maintain the highest level
of professional competency during their employment with the City. To this end, it
will be the policy of the City to provide resources for ongoing professional training
and staff development.

Elected officials — In accordance with the requirements of the City Charter,
compensation for the Mayor, members of the Board of Aldermen, and School
Committee is established by ordinance. Elected official compensation is
generally subject to review by a Blue Ribbon Compensation Committee, every
five to ten years.

Management and non-union employees — The salaries of all Newton Public
School management and non-union employees are determined by a vote of the
School Committee. All municipal management and non-union employee salaries,
except for the City Clerk/Clerk of the Board of Aldermen, are governed by a pay
plan approved by the Mayor and subject to funding by the Board of Aldermen.
The salary of the City Clerk/Clerk of the Board of Aldermen is established by
ordinance, as required by law. The salaries of all municipal employees are
published in the annual budget.

Procurement: In order to demonstrate that City resources are being used in an
effective and efficient manner, the City expects to make maximum use of competitive
bids and proposals for the purchase of goods and services.

#78-10
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Capital Planning: The City acquires, constructs and maintains a range of capital
assets for purposes of providing governmental and business-like services. In
accordance with the requirements of the City Charter, the Mayor annually prepares a
five-year capital improvement plan, whose objective is to identify and prioritize
financing sources for needed capital outlay improvements.

Capital outlay and improvements with a value of $500,000 or more, along with those
financed with capital grants and/or debt will be accounted for in a Capital Project
Fund. Capital outlay and improvements with a value of less than $500,000, but
which are expected to require replacement annually, will be accounted for within the
operating budget of the appropriate department. Non-recurring capital outlay and
improvements with a value of less than $500,000 will be accounted for by department
in the special appropriation sub-fund of the appropriate City fund. In order to
accumulate resources for future capital needs, a Capital Stabilization Fund will be
maintained, with such separate sub-funds as the Mayor and Board of Aldermen shall
agree to be necessary in order to effectively plan for future capital needs.

In order to spread the cost of capital improvements over the generations of Newton
stakeholders expected to benefit from the improvements, debt financing is expected
to be the principal financing source for major capital improvements. Debt maturity
terms will not exceed the expected life of the capital asset being financed. Debt
service for capital improvements benefiting all or the majority of the stakeholders of
the City is to be financed from General Fund resources. Debt Service for water and
sewer (including storm-water projects) will be financed from special revenue fund
resources and debt service for eligible community preservation fund projects will be
financed from Community Preservation Fund resources.

At least 3% of General Fund revenue, plus all Massachusetts School Building
Assistance grant reimbursements, will be dedicated to capital improvement financing.
To the extent that annual debt service requirements are less than this sum, the
difference will be appropriated to the City’s Capital Stabilization Fund for future
capital financing.

All of the foregoing is a reflection of existing practice.

Financial Reporting: The accounting records of the City will be maintained such
that financial statements and supporting schedules can be prepared in accordance
with the City’s budgetary basis of accounting; the requirements of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Departments of Revenue and Education; and
generally accepted accounting principals for state and local governments.

#78-10
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The Board of Aldermen, through an Audit Sub-Committee of the Board’s Finance
Committee, shall make arrangements for an independent annual financial audit of the
City’s financial statements and accounts, which is expected to be presented no later
than 180 days after the end of the City’s fiscal year. Copies of the City’s audited
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Federal Single Audit Report, and
Management Letter will be posted on the City’s website.

Quarterly budgetary-basis financial reports, in a format requested by the Mayor and
the Finance Committee of the Board of Aldermen, will be rendered within 30 days
after the close of each fiscal quarter, with the exception of year-end, when a complete
budgetary basis annual financial report shall be presented within 60 days of the end of
the fiscal year. A complete copy of the budgetary-basis annual financial report will
be posted on the City’s website. More frequent financial reports will be rendered as
needed in order to assure that the mayor and Board of Aldermen are made aware of
unanticipated results of financial operations.

Free Cash — Free Cash represents the accumulated difference between General Fund
revenues and expenditures, on a cash basis of accounting. It is a goal of the City that
Free Cash is not expected to be a recurring source of financing for either the
operating or capital budget of the City. It is a goal of the City that the primary
purpose of Free Cash is to serve as a financing source for third tier budget
contingencies (revenues or expenditures) that are not provided for in either operating
Department or Budget Reserve appropriations of the annual General Fund budget,
and to hedge against reductions in annual state aid distributions to the City. The
target amount of free cash is 1% - 3% of General Fund revenue. The City recognizes
that the target amount of Free Cash is significantly less than national norms, however,
the target level is considered prudent, given the stability of our revenue sources and
the following recommendations contained in this document:

e General Fund Revenues budgeted at 99% of what actual collections are
expected to be.

e Free Cash is not expected to serve as a recurring operating or capital budget
financing source.

e Employee salaries and wages budgeted in full within annual operating budgets
and provision is made for expected collective bargaining and salary scale
adjustment in a separate wage reserve.

e Legal claims and settlements, budgeted at the median annual expenditure
level for the trailing five year period, with backup reserve capability in the
Liability Self Insurance Fund.
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Snow and ice control appropriated at the median annual expenditure level for
the trailing five year period, with backup reserve capacity in the appropriated
Budget Reserve (contingency).

Separate funded self insurance funds maintained for Group Health and
Workers’ Compensation liability exposures.

A Budget Reserve (revenue and expenditure) contingency of 0.5% of total
revenues is included in the annual operating budget to meet recurring
extraordinary and unforeseen requirements.

The property tax serves as the City’s primary source of revenue and revenues
from this source are not as economically sensitive as revenues from sales and
wage taxes.

Property taxes are payable in quarterly installments, with delinquencies
assessed penalties of 14% per annum, which provides the City with a source
of regular and stable cash flow.

It shall be the practice of the Mayor to inform the Board of Aldermen
whenever these guidelines, goals, policies and practices need to be modified
in a particular instance.
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generally subject to review by a Blue Ribbon Compensation Committee, every
five to ten years.

¢ Management and non-union employees: The salaries of all Newton Public School
management and non-union employees are determined by vote of the School
Committee. All municipal management and non-union employee salaries, except
for the City Clerk/Clerk of the Board of Aldermen, is governed by pay plan
approved by the Mayor and subject to funding by the Board of Aldermen. The
salary of the City Clerk/Clerk of the Board of Aldermen is established by
ordinance, as required by law. The salaries of all municipal employees are
published in the annual budget.

Procurement: In order to demonstrate that City resources are being used in an effective
and efficient manner, the City expects to make maximum use of competitive bids and
proposals for the purchase of goods and services.

Capital planning: The City acquires, constructs, and maintains a range of capital assets
for purposes of providing governmental and business-like services. In accordance with
the requirements of the City Charter, the Mayor annually prepares a five year capital
improvement plan, whose objective is to identify; prioritize; and identify financing
sources for needed capital outlay and improvements.

Capital outlay and improvements with a value of $500,000 or more; those financed with
capital grants and/or debt will be accounted for in a Capital Project Fund. Capital outlay
and improvements with a value of less than $500,000, but which are expected to require
replacement annually, will be accounted for within the operating budget of the
appropriate department. Non recurring capital outlay and improvements with a value of
less than $500,000 will be accounted for by department in the special appropriation sub-
fund of the appropriate City fund. In order to accumulate resources for future capital
needs, a Capital Stabilization Fund will be maintained, with such separate sub-funds as
the Mayor and Board of Aldermen shall agree to be necessary in order to effectively plan
for future capital needs.

In order to spread the cost of capital improvements over the generations of Newton
stakeholders expected to benefit from the improvements, debt financing is expected to be
the principal financing source for major capital improvements. Debt maturity terms will
not exceed the expected life of the capital asset being financed. Debt service for capital
improvements benefiting all or the majority of the stakeholders of the City is to be
financed from General Fund resources. Debt service for water and sewer (including
storm-water projects) will be financed from special revenue fund resources and debt
service for eligible community preservation fund projects will be financed from
Community Preservation Fund resources.

At least 3% of General Fund revenue, plus all Massachusetts School Building Assistance
grant reimbursements, will be dedicated to capital improvement financing. To the extent

vii
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that annual debt service requirements are less than this sum, the difference will be
appropriated to the City’s Capital Stabilization Fund for future capital financing.

All of the foregoing is a reflection of existing practice,, o [ Deleted:

Financial reporting: The accounting records of the City will be maintained such that
financial statements and supporting schedules can be prepared in accordance with the
City’s budgetary basis of accounting; the requirements of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Departments of Revenue and Education; and generally accepted
accounting principals for state and local governments.

The Board of Aldermen, through an Audit Sub-Committee of the Board’s Finance
Committee, shall make arrangements for an independent annual financial audit of the
City’s financial statements and accounts, which is expected to be presented not later than
180 days after the end of the City’s fiscal year. Copies of the City’s audited
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; Federal Single Audit Report; and Management
Letter will be posted on the City’s web-site.

Quarterly budgetary-basis financial reports, in a format requested by the Mayor and
Finance Committee of the Board of Aldermen, will be rendered within 30 days after the
close of each fiscal quarter, with the exception of year-end, when a complete budgetary
basis annual financial report shall be presented within 60 days of the end of the fiscal
year. A complete copy of the budgetary basis annual financial report will be posted on
the City’s web site. More frequent financial reports will be rendered as needed in order
to assure that the Mayor and Board of Aldermen are made aware of unanticipated results
of financial operations.

Free cash:  Free cash represents the accumulated difference between General Fund

revenues and expenditures, on a cash basis of accounting. It is a goal of the city that free - { Deleted: F
cash is not expected to be a recurring source of financing for either the operating or
capital budget of the City. It is a goal of the city that the primary purpose of free cash is - { Deleted: T

to serve as a financing source for third tier budget contingencies (revenues or
expenditures) that are not provided for in either operating department or budget reserve
appropriations of the annual General Fund budget, and to hedge against reductions in
annual state aid distributions to the City. The target amount of free cash is 1% - 3% of
General Fund revenue. The City recognizes that the target amount of free cash is
significantly less than national norms; however, the target level is considered prudent

given the stability of our revenue sources and the following, recommendations contained - - { Deleted: considerations

e General Fund revenues budgeted at 99% of what actual collections are expected { Deleted: are

tobe.

e Free cash is not expected to serve as a recurring operating or capital budget
financing source.
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and provision is made for expected collective bargaining and salary scale
adjustments in a separate wage reserve.

the trailing five year period, with back up reserve capability in the Liability Self
Insurance Fund.

trailing five year period, with back up reserve capacity in the appropriated Budget
Reserve (contingency).

Compensation liability exposures.

A budget reserve (revenue and expenditure) contingency of 0.5% of total
revenues in included in the annual operating budget to meet recurring
extraordinary and unforeseen requirements.

The property tax serves as the City’s primary source of revenue and revenues
from this source are not as economically sensitive as revenues from sales and
wage taxes.

Property taxes are payable in quarterly installments, with delinquencies assessed
penalties of 14% per annum, which provides the City with a source of regular and
stable cash flow.

Jt shall be the practice of the mayor to inform the Board of Aldermen whenever these

quidelines, goals , policies and practices need to be modified in a particular instance,

- {Deleted: al

- {Deleted: al
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS #78-10
DRAFT
CITY FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES:
Financial Reserve Policy

Financial reserves are necessary in order for the City to continue to provide essential
public services in the face of extraordinary and unforeseen financial events that could not
have been reasonably anticipated and provided for in the annual operating budget.
Sufficient financial reserves are also required by credit rating agencies.

In order to minimize the magnitude of reserves that must be held for extraordinary and
unforeseen financial risks, revenues will be estimated conservatively; all known
expenditure requirements will be funded at levels consistent with prior year experience,
along with any unique factors likely to impact the new fiscal year; and non-recurring
revenues and/or financing sources will only be used for non-recurring expenditure
purposes.

Similarly, in order to minimize General Fund reserve requirements, activities funded by
fees and user charges will maintain adequate reserves within their appropriate special
revenue fund(s). Fees and user charges will be set at least annually at levels sufficient,
when appropriate, to meet the full operating and capital replacement costs, and maintain
the level of financial reserves established for that fund. Commercial insurance will also
be purchased to transfer financial risk associated with any activities that the City can not
reasonably fund from available reserves in self insurance funds.

The City’s financial reserves will incorporate three basic types of reserves for each major
operating fund (i.e., the General Fund, the Stormwater, Water and Sewer Funds, and the
Revolving Funds).

e A budget reserve appropriation to address annual operating expenditure
contingencies which are non-recurring and of an extraordinary and unforeseen
nature. Any such funds that are not needed for operating expenditure
contingencies during a given fiscal year are to be closed out to fund balance (free
cash) at year end.

e A rainy day stabilization fund to address cyclical declines in operating revenues,
generally resulting from economic factors outside the control of the City. In the
case of the City’s General Fund, these cyclical declines typically would be
evidenced by reductions in state aid; reductions in economically sensitive taxes
such as the motor vehicle excise tax, the hotel room occupancy tax, and the local
option meals tax; and reductions in building permit and investment income
revenues. Water and Sewer Fund rainy day stabilization funds are intended to
mitigate extraordinary and unforeseen revenue declines that result from cyclical
weather conditions that reduce water sales. Any funds that are not needed for
rainy day contingencies in a given fiscal year will remain in the rainy day
stabilization fund.

e A wage reserve account to provide funding for anticipated collective bargaining
costs.

Revised 4/08/2010 1
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General Fund

Effective with the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011, free cash will be used exclusively
as a financing source for the General Fund budget reserve appropriation and for funding
contributions to the City’s rainy day stabilization fund.

The target size of the City’s annual budget reserve appropriation account will be
between one half and one percent of the annual General Fund operating budget. (Note:
Based on the current General Fund budget of $294.7 million, a budget reserve of between
$1.5 million and $3 million would be required.)

In addition to the budget reserve appropriation account, a wage reserve account will be
included in each annual budget to provide funding for anticipated collective bargaining
costs. Any funds included in such an account that exceed actual collective bargaining
settlement requirements will be closed out to fund balance (free cash) at year end. To the
extent that contract settlements remain unresolved at year end, the balance in the wage
reserve account will be continued into the following fiscal year to fund probable
obligations for the prior year.

Although General Fund financial reserve policies frequently focus on the appropriate
levels of undesignated/unassigned fund balance, or free cash, Newton intends to address
its General Fund “rainy day” needs in a separate rainy day stabilization fund. The
primary reason for the formal segregation of such monies is to prevent these critical
reserves from being used for unrelated City needs, and to demonstrate that resources are
in fact being set aside specifically for extraordinary and unforeseen revenue disruption.

The rainy day stabilization fund is designed to be used when the City faces a multiple
year economic recession or downturn. Indications of such a recession or downturn are
declines in state aid or in economically sensitive taxes such as the motor vehicle excise
tax, the hotel room occupancy tax, and the local option meals tax; and reductions in
building permit and investment income revenues. To ensure that the rainy day
stabilization funds are available for multiple years of an economic downturn, no more
than 1/3" of the funds can be used in any single fiscal year. Appropriations may

be made from the Rainy Day Stabilization Fund into the General Fund for operating
purposes, upon recommendation of the Mayor and by a two-thirds vote of the Board of
Aldermen.

The target size of the City’s General Fund rainy day stabilization fund is 5% of General
Fund revenue. Once established by formal vote of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen,
annual contributions will be made to the fund until such time as the contributions and
accumulated investment income equal 5% of total General Fund revenue. (Note: Based
upon the current $294.7 million, the target rainy day stabilization fund would be $15
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million.) The City recognizes that the target amount of the rainy day stabilization fund is
somewhat less than national norms;* however, this target level is considered prudent
given the following considerations:

The budget reserve appropriation, the rainy day stabilization fund, and free cash,
are not expected to serve as a recurring operating or capital budget financing
sources.

Employee salaries and wages will be budgeted in full within annual operating
budgets and provision is made in the wage reserve account for expected collective
bargaining and salary scale adjustments.

Legal claims and settlements will be budgeted at the median annual expenditure
level for the trailing five year period, with back-up reserve capability in the
Liability Self Insurance Fund.

Snow and ice control costs will be appropriated at the median annual expenditure
level for the trailing five year period, with back-up reserve capacity in the Budget
Reserve Appropriation.

Separately funded self insurance funds are maintained for Group Health and
Workers Compensation liability exposures.

A Dbudget reserve appropriation of between one half and one percent of total
revenues will be included in the annual operating budget to meet recurring
extraordinary and unforeseen requirements.

The property tax serves as the City’s primary source of revenue and revenues
from this source are more predictable, stable, and not as economically sensitive as
revenues from sales and wage taxes.

Property taxes are payable in quarterly installments, with delinquencies assessed
penalties of 14% per annum, which provides the City with a source of regular and
stable cash flow.

The City expects to be able to achieve the target level rainy day stabilization fund over

the next three fiscal years (as the current Capital Stabilization Fund is depleted) by:

! The Government Finance Officers Association of United States and Canada (GFOA) recommends that at
a minimum, general purpose governments regardless of size, maintain general reserves of no less than two
months of regular operating revenues or expenditures. Based upon Newton’s current General Fund budget

of $294.7 million this would equate to $49.1 million.

Revised 4/08/2010
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e Limiting the amount of free cash used to fund the fiscal year 2011 budget to not
more than $2 million and the amount used to fund the 2012 and 2013 budgets by
not more than $1.5 million per year (all of which will be for purposes of funding
the budget reserve appropriation account);

e By properly budgeting for anticipated snow and ice control; public safety
overtime; and recurring legal settlements beginning with the fiscal year 2012
operating budget;

e By closing all future overlay surplus balances, not needed for funding ongoing
revaluation activity, to free cash;

e By retaining extraordinary revenue items such as those from the Verizon personal
property tax settlement and the New Falls in lieu of tax advance payment within
free cash;

e And from limiting the use of any growth in investment income, inspectional
services permit revenue, and motor excise tax revenue for operating budget
growth until the 5% rainy day stabilization fund target is realized.

Once the target levels for the budget reserve appropriation and the rainy day stabilization
fund are realized, any excess free cash reserves may be appropriated for current pay-as-
you go capital project financing; for third tier budget contingencies (revenues or
expenditures) that are not otherwise provided for; or may be contributed to the City’s
Capital Project Stabilization Fund for future capital project funding.

Water and Sewer Utility Funds

The City has experienced significant volatility in water and sewer fund revenue
collections over the past couple of years. This volatility has resulted from a combination
of changes in water consumption patterns, resulting from year to year changes in weather
conditions; high levels of abatements resulting from faulty meter readings; and from rates
that were set artificially low, based upon consumption assumptions that have been in
excess of actual historical experience.

In order to minimize the need for multiple rate increases in a single fiscal year, the
postponement of needed capital outlay and improvements, and potential General Fund
subsidies, water and sewer rates will be determined annually, based upon the most recent
historical consumption patterns; a budget reserve equal to one half of one percent of the
annual budget will be included in each year’s operating budget for operating
contingencies; adequate funding will be included in each annual operating budget for
both capital projects, regular maintenance and replacement of water meters; and a rainy
day stabilization fund equal to at least 10% of the budget shall be maintained in each
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fund to mitigate extraordinary and unforeseen revenue declines that result from cyclical
weather conditions that reduce water sales.

Self Insurance Funds

The City will purchase commercial insurance to transfer any risk too large to self fund.

For property insurance purposes, this means purchasing commercial insurance for all loss
exposures, except for deductibles of up to $250,000 (current deductible is $100,000).

For group health self insurance purposes, this means purchasing excess insurance for
claims in excess of $250,000 and retaining reserves of between 1.5 and 2 months of
average claims experience (net of the incurred but unreported claims liability that is to be
recalculated at least annually based upon actual claims payment data provided by plan
administrators). Premiums will be set annually at a level sufficient to meet projected
claims and to maintain the required reserves. To the extent that reserves exceed the target
levels, premiums may be reduced accordingly such that the excess reserves are reduced to
the target levels.

For workers compensation self insurance purposes, the City will annually arrange for an
independent actuarial valuation of the City’s workers compensation plan liabilities and
will make contributions to the fund in the following year at a level sufficient to meet the
actuarial estimate of projected losses. In lieu of purchasing commercial stop loss
insurance, the City may maintain a reserve equal to 10% of the sum of the accrued
actuarial liability plus projected following year expected losses, in order to fund
extraordinary and unforeseen claims experience. To the extent that fund reserves exceed
the target level, excess reserves may be used to reduce the City’s annual appropriation.

Capital Project Stabilization Fund

The City will also establish a capital project stabilization fund. This stabilization fund is
a mechanism for setting aside money for capital projects in order to equalize the effect of
capital expenditures over time and supplement monies for capital projects from the
General Fund (typically for short-term, small capital investments), debt service,
unexpended/unobligated bond proceeds, state and federal grants, sale of surplus property,
water and sewer charges, and other available funds. Massachusetts General Law, Chapter
40, Section 5B provides for the establishment and maintenance of Capital Project
Stabilization Funds. The Mayor and the Board of Aldermen may vote to

appropriate sums of money into a Capital Project Stabilization Fund for purposes of
accumulating sums for future capital project financing. Appropriations may

be made from a Capital Project Stabilization Fund by a two-thirds vote of the Board of
Aldermen for any purpose for which the City is authorized to borrow under

Chapter 44, Sections 7 and 8.
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Telephone

City of Newton, Massachusetts R0
Office of the Mayor (617 1961113

David B. Cohen Dcohen@ci.newton.ma.us

Mayor
Memorandum

To: Honorable Members of the Board of Aldermen

From: Susan Burstein, Chief Budget Officer

Date: April 2, 2009

Re: Capital Financing Plan

A number of members have asked to see a revised capital plan in conjunction with the authorization to
purchase the trash toters for the automated trash/single stream recycling contract. The debt service for
these toters will be paid for from the annual savings in trash collection costs and will have no impact on
the long range capital plan. The Mayor is prepared to discuss the entire capital plan in greater detail in
conjunction with the budget, with any and all appropriate Board committees.

The attached capital plan incorporates the recent successful bond sale and continues to meet the
objective of funding Newton North, the renovation of the fire stations, the new fields at Newton South and
all other project previously approved by the board, as well as allowing for an annual investment of $3.5
million for new capital projects.

This plan is presented in a similar fashion to the plans discussed last year at this time. It includes may of
the same assumptions and definitions.

1. The cost of Newton North High School is $197.5 million
2. Debtterms

a. Newton North debt will be for a term of 30 years (except $15 million loan from MSBA

which is 2% for 25 years)

b. All Other building related debt will be for 20 years.

c. All Other non-building debt will be for 15 years.

d. Debt for New Turf is for 15 years at a aggregate rate of 3.18%
3.  We will continue to renovate all of the fire stations on a schedule of approximately one every 18

to 24 months. The cost assumed for these renovations is $2.75 million each.

4. The percent of revenue dedicated to capital financing increases from 3% to a maximum of 5%.
5. We will continue to spend $3.5 million per year on other building and non-building capital
initiatives annually.
Old debt includes all debt issued before FY07 and debt related to Newton South.
Any future capital expenditures will be through debt exclusion to the extent that they will cause
the plan to exceed 5% of revenue for debt service.

No

New on this plan is a category of self supporting debt. This includes the trash toters, the Day energy
project and a new street betterment. In each case there is either a funding stream from savings
generated directly from the project or dedicated revenue. For example, the automated trash/single stream
recycling project is expected to save at least $1 million in FY11. The debt service for the toters will be
paid from this savings yielding a savings of $650,000 in FY11 increasing annually until the bond is fully
paid off. Guaranteed Energy savings will pay for the work at Day in a similar fashion.

Please let me know if you have any additional questions.

1000 Commonwealth Avenue Newton, Massachusetts 02459

WWW.Ci.newton.ma.us
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#108-10
Newton Board of Aldermen

April 20, 2010

A Resolution requesting the Retirement Board
not appropriate public funds to send its members
to a conference in Las Vegas.

Whereas, the City of Newton, like other cities and towns in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, is facing tough financial choices in a difficult economic
environment; and

Whereas, Mayor Warren has eliminated out of state travel for all city department
staff; and
Whereas, Mayor Warren has appealed to the Retirement Board not to spend public

funds to send members to the Conference in Las Vegas; and

Whereas, the Retirement Board’s recent negative investment performance will
require the City of Newton to contribute an additional
$1.7 million in FY2010; and

Whereas, spending of public funds in this manner undermines the public trust.

Now therefore be it resolved,
That the Board of Aldermen requests the Retirement Board not
appropriate any public funds to send its members to the Las Vegas
Conference.

Offered this 20™ day of April by Aldermen Gentile, Baker, Blazar, Freedman, Fuller,
Harney, Johnson, Merrill, Rice, and Shapiro.

Under suspension of the Rules
Resolution approved unanimously

(SGD) David A. Olson, City Clerk






he National Conference on Public-Employee Retirement Systems (NCPERS) the nation’s largest

nonprofit public pension advocate, partmered with the Labor & Worklife Program at Harvard Law

School, through its Pensions and Capital Stewardship Project, to establish the Program for Advanced

Trustee Studies (PATS). PATS was developed with the aim of providing academically grounded and
practical instruction and discussion of subjects important to pension fund trustees, including finance, law, and
trustee ethics. Participants in the Program will have the opportunity to learn from Harvard University instruc-
tors and other nationally and mtematlonally recognized experts on pen51on issues.

The inaugural edition of the Program was a resounding success, and PATS has since been expanded to three
- days to allow participants to fully explore and discuss the issues with their colleagues from across the nation.

The 2010 Program for Advanced Trustee Studies will focus on two areas of importance to public funds:

Flducmry Duty and Pensmn Fund Risk Management.

Preliminary Agenda

MONDAY, JULY 26, 2010

2:30 bm - 3:30 pm Registration

3:30 pm - 5:00'pm 'Introductory Session

6:00 pm ~ 8:30 pm Receptlon and Dmner

" TUESDAY, JULY 27, 2010

Fiduciary Duty: A Review, a Comparlson,
and a Rethinking?

Fiduciary Duty:
~ Traditional Views .

9:00 am - 10:15am
. 10:15 am - 10:30 am Break

Fiduciary Duty:
Challenges to the
Traditional View-

10:30 am - 12:00 pm..

12:00 pm - 12:45pm e Lunch -

Fiduciary Duty Plus:
Requirements Beyond
Those of Fiduciary
Duty as Such

12:45 pm - 2:15 pm

2:15 pm - 2:30 pm Break

The Landscape of -
Liability for Breaches of
Fiduciary Duty

" 2:30 pm - 3:45 pm

3:45 pm - 4:00 plﬁ Break
Applymg What's Been

~4:00 pm - 5:15 pm ..
: Learned

WEDNESDAY, JULY 28, 2010
Pension Fund Risk Management in the
Post-Meltdown World

Methods and Tools for
Pension Fund Asset
Liability Management

8:45 am - 10:15 am

10:15 am - 10 30 am Break

Modern Portfolio
Theory (MPT)/MPT
Meets the Real World

10:30 am - IZ:OO pm

12:00 pm - 12:45 pm Lunch

Making Asset
Allocation and -
Investment Risk
Management Decisions:

A Case Study

12:45 pm - 2:15 pm

Best Practices for
Pension Fund Risk
Management -

2:15 pm - 3:45 pm ..

3:45 pm = 4:00 pm

Applying What's Been

4:00 pm ~ 5:15 pm
' Learned




T e

. Email address

" Total fund participants Retirees ' " Active employees _

List previous position(s) at pension fund

PROGRAM FOR ADVANCED TRUSTEE STUDIES
Application Instructions

The Program for Advanced Trustee Studies (PATS) is intended to provide a unique educational experience that
allows trustees to gain the knowledge and skills necessary to effectively grapple with important issues facing pub-
lic pension plans. It is designed to educate through dialogue and interaction among program faculty and trustee -
participants. PATS seeks motivated and experienced trustees who will actively participate in the educational ses-
sions. We anticipate high demand for the 50 seats in the 2010 class. PATS will seek a diverse group of trustee par-
ticipants. We hope to have trustees from varying sizes of public funds, geographic locations, and backgrounds.

To apply, please c_omplete» the following application. Answer all questio_ﬁs in as much detail as possible. Please use
a separate sheet of paper if necessary. Applications will be evaluated based upon the quality and thoroughness of
the responses. Completed applications must be received by NCPERS by 12:00pm EST on May 17, 2010.

Please mail your application to: NCPERS, 444 N. Ca’pitdl St., NW, Suite 630, \X/ashingtén, DC 20001 or fax to
(202) 624-1439. Acceptance notices will be mailed beginning the week of May 24, 2010. .

COST TO ATTEND: $550 per person

HOUSING: Housing has been arranged at The Charles _Hocel near the Ha rvard campus. The rate per night will be
$189 for single and double rooms. Further reservaton details will be sent to you upon acceptance into PATS.

, PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE
GENERAL INFORMATION c

Name _
Gender (optional)_ Ethnicity (optional) Age (oprional) _

Preferred mailing address

Phone number, - " Phone number (cell)

PENSION FUND INFORMATION

Pension fund

Total assets of pension fund ($) 7

Total number of pension fund trustees

Total number of years on the pension fund

Current position at pension fund

List current committee assignment(s): _

" Chair

Vice-chair

Other leadership position’

"SAVEFORM B  PRINT FORM




List previous committee assignment(s):

Chair

Vice<chair

" Other leadership position

EDUCATIONAL AND RELATED INFORMATION

List other pension organization(s) to which you or your pension fund belong

List educational program(s) or conference(s)

You attended in 2008 or 2009

Ty NS L e

S T

You plan to attend in 2010

Union affiliation ' Leadership position(s) _

List work experience, begirining with current or most recent employment

Position Employer |

List educational experience, beginning with current or most recent schooling

School ' - Locarion (City, State) ) - Dates Degree (if applicable)

List and/or describe any other experience that you think may be relevant.

Use a separate sheet of paper if necessary.

"SAVEFORM ™ PRINT FORM




PLEASE ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTION AND RETURN IT WITH THIS APPLICATION

How will your participation in PATS help you in your dutes as a pension fund rrustee!

.
i
1
:
L
E

National Cc)x'tfex;eﬁce on Public Employee Retirement Systems
444 N. Capitol Street, NW, Suite 630, Washington, DC 20001
(202) 624-1456 * fax (202) 624-1439 » www.NCPERS.org

~ SAVEFORM ™  PRINT FORM
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Program for Advanced Trustee Studies (PATS)
July 26™ — 28" 2010
Boston, MA

PRELMINIARY AGENDA

Monday, July 26, 2010

2:30 pm— 3:30 pm Registration
3:30rpm - 5:00 pm Introductory Session- "

6:00 pm —8:30 pm Reception and Dinner

Tuesday, July 27, 2010

Fiduciary Duty: A Review, a Comparison, and a Rethinking?

9:00 am - 10:15 am ~ Fiduciary Dﬁty: Traditional Views

10:15am-10:30am  Break

10:‘30 am -- 12:00 pm Fiduciary Duty: Challenges to the Traditional View

12:00 pm — 12:45 pm Lunch |

12:45 pm-2:15pm Fiduciary Duty Plus: Requirements Beyond Those of Fiduciary ‘Duty as

Such

2:15 pm —2:30 pm | Break »

2:30 pm — 3:45 pm The Landscape of Liability for Breaches of Fiduciary Duty

3:45 pm — 4:00 pm Break | '

© 4:.00pm-515pm Applying What’s Been Learned

‘Wedneésday, July 28, 2010

Pénsidn Fund Risk Management in the Post-Me.l‘tdov_vn World

8:45 am - 10:15 am Methods and Tools for Pension Fund Asset Liability Management '
10:15am-10:30am  Break | | |
10:30 am ~ 12:00 pm Modern Portfolio Theory (MPT)/MPT Meets the Real World

12:.00 pm — 12:45 pm Lunch
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12:45 pm — 2:15 pm Making Asset Allocation and Investment Risk Management Decisions: A
' ‘ Case Study _

2:15 pm — 3:45 pm | Best Practices for Pension Fund Risk Management

3:45 pm — 4:00 pm Break

4:00 pm — 5:15 pm - Applying What's Been Learned
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MACRS REGISTRATION REMINDERS

'PLEASE NOTE THE CHANGES IN HOTEL ROOM
CANCELATIONPOLICY -~
THERE WILL BE A FEE FOR CONFERENCE CANCELATION
' THERE ARE 4 REGISTRATION FORMS |
" HOTEL |

PRE-CONFERENCE

ANNUAL MEETING AND CONFERENCE -
- AFORM WITH A DISCOUNT FOR ATTENDING BOTH

VCOPY THE REGISTRATION FORM IF MORE SPACE IS
NEEDED | |

' QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS ARE WELCOME @
kjr228@aol.com or 413 246 9238

KEVIN REGAN 'CONFERENCE PLANNER
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DRAFT

"MACRS 2010 COMPREHENSIVE TRAINING PROGRAM
FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF |
AGENDA

SATURDAY — JUNE 5, 2010
8: 30 a.m. — 10:30 a.m. :

REGISTRATION
. (Orleans)

FIRST SESSION (Grand Ballroom 1)
10:30 a.m. — 10:45 a.m. _
Welcome and Introduction

Dennis Devine, President MACRS
Richard Heidlage, Esq., Acting Chief Administrative Maglstrate, Division of

Admmlstratlve Law Appeals, Chair

110:45 a.m. — 11:30 a.m. GENERAL OVERVIEW OF DUTIES,
RESPONSIBILITIES AND LIABILITIES AS A BOARD/STAFF MEMBER IN
ADMINISTERING A CHAPTER 32 RETIREMENT PLAN:

11:30 am. - 11: 45 a.m. BREAK (Drinks and Snacks provided in back of the room)

11: 45 a.m. 12:30 p.m MONTHLY MEETINGS AND RECORDS

12: 30p m. — 1°00 p.m. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS — WHAT THEY
 ARE, WHICH ONES SHOULD YOU HAVE AND HOW DO YOU ADOPT THEM

1:00 p.m. — 1:45 p.m. LUNCH (Box lunches will be provided; partlclpants may
continue eating during the afternoon sessions.) -

1:45 p.m. —2:30 p.m. MEMBERSHIP IN THE SYSTEM: PART-TIME
TEMPORARY, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR? - .

2:30 p.m. — 3:00 p.m. CREDITABLE SERVICE: PART-TIME AND BUY-BACKS
3:00 p.m. 3:15 p.m. BREAK (Drinks and Snacks provxded in back of the room)
3:15 p.m. —3:45 p.m. REGULAR COMPENSATION ISSUES

3:45 p.m. — 4:15 p.m. BENEFICIARIES |

4:15 p.m.—- 4:45 p.m. FORFEITURES




PRELIMINARY AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE

MACRS 2010 ANNUAL MEETING AND CONFERENCE - JUNE 6-9 2010

AGENDA
SUNDAY, JUNE 6 .

3:00 p.m. - 5:00 p.m.: REGISTRATION (Centerville Room)
Name Tags must be worn at all times
Exhibitors' Booths will be available Monday, at the coffee break, through Tuesday lunchtime.
230 p.m. - 7:00 p.m. ,
WELCOME RECEPTION (Cabana Tent) -
Sponsored by MACRS :

- DINNER ON YOUR OWN

MONDAY, JUNE 7
7:00 a.m. - 8:30 a.m. GROUP BREAKFAST (BASS RIVER)
8:00 a.m. — 3:00 p.m. REGISTRATION
8:45a.m. - 9:15a.m. FIRST GENERAL SESSION (Grand Baliroom 1)
Moderator: Denis Devine, President MACRS
Presentation of Colors - Hyannis Fire Department
Pledge of Allegiance
President’'s Welcome .
Appointment of Election Committee ;
9:15a.m.- 10:15 am.  Keynote Speaker David Sowerby CFA Loomins Sayles
10:15 a.m.~-10:45 a.m. BREAK (EXHIBITS OPEN)
106:45 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.: LEGISLATIVE UPDATE
Moderator: Ralph White MACRS LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE.
Panel: J. Coleman Walsh, :
Shawn Duhamel MACRS Executive Board
12:00 p.m. - 1:00 p.m.;: LUNCH BREAK (BUFFET)
1:00 p.m. — 1:30 p.m. General Sesslon for Delegates (Ballroom)
. Moderator Denis Devine, President MACRS :
Nominations for President, Vice President and Executive Boand
MACRS BUSINESS MEETING :
1:30p.m- 2:30 p.m. Investment Panel TBA
3:00 p.m-5:00 p.m.
Moderator: Denis Devine, President MACRS STATE ETHICS PRESENTATION
David Giannotti :
NETWORKING ACTIVITIES DINNER ON YOUR OWN

TUESDAY, JUNE
7:00 a.m. < 8:15a.m.  GROUP BREAKFAST (Bass River)
8:30 a.m. — 10:30 a.m. REGISTRATION (Centerville)

#108-10

9:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. POLLS OPEN: ELECTION OF EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS (Orleans)

SECOND GENERAL SESSION (Ballroom)Moderator: Chet Riley, Vice President MACRS

9:00 — 10:00 a.m. HEALTH INSURANC:E PANEL




Resort And #108-10
Conference

Center

At Hyannis

MACRS 2010 SPRING CONFERENGE

HOTEL RESERVATION FORM
Friday, June 4, 2010 — Wednesday, June 9, 2010

Please reserve the following accommodations.

$150.00 PER GUESTROOM, PER NIGHT, SINGLE OCCUPANCY, PLUS 9.7% STATE TAX
$150.00 PER GUESTROOM, PER NIGHT, DOUBLE OCCUPANCY, PLUS 9.7% STATE TAX
$20.00 PER ADDITIONAL PERSON (UP TO 2 ADDITIONAL PEOPLE) PLUS 9.7% STATE TAX
Note: All taxes are subject to increase

A BLOCK OF GUESTROOMS IS BEING HELD AT THE ABOVE RATE UNTIL MAY 4, 2010. PLEASE NOTE THAT HISTORY
SHOWS THAT ROOMS SELL OUT PRIOR TO THIS DATE. ROOMS ARE FIRST COME, FIRST SERVE AND WE ENTER N
RESERVATION FORMS IN THE ORDER WE RECEIVE THEM. YOU ARE ENCOURAGED TO MAKE YOUR RESERVATIONS
EARLY TO ENSURE CONFERENCE RATE AND AVAILABILITY. ONCE THE RESORT AND CONFERENCE CENTER AT HYANNIS
IS SOLD OUT, RESERVATION FORMS WILL BE FORWARDED TO AN OVERFLOW HOTEL YOU WILL THEN RECEIVE A

CONFIRMATION LETTER FROM THAT HOTEL.

NAME(S) _

ARRIVAL DATE:_ ____ DEPARTURE DATE:

ADDRESS: -

cITY: ' __ sTATE | ZIP CODE:
DAY TELEPHONE: ) FAX; ‘

E-MAIL ADDRESS (REQUIRED).

CREDIT CARD TYPE: | - CREDIT CARD NUMBER:

EXPIRATION DATE: : __ SIGNATURE: _

RESERVATION POLICIES

: Déposit' We require a $164.55 deposit pef room at the time the reseNaﬁon is made. If the
deposit is by credit card, we will charge the deposit in advance when the Reservatlon Formis

received. :
Cancellation Policy: If an individual reservation is cancelled (14) fourteen days or more prior to
arrival the deposit is refunded less a $15.00 service charge. ifan individual reservationis =
cancelled (13) thirteen days or less or the guest does not arrive on the speclﬁed dates, the
reservation is cancelled for all nights and the deposit will be forfeited. The remaining nights on

the reservation will also be cancelled and is not automatlcally reinstated.

T - PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT IF YOU DO NOT SHOW UP FOR YOUR RESERVATION, THE RESERVATION DROPS OUT OF

THE SYSTEM AND IS NOT AUTOMATICALLY REINSTATED.
CHECK-IN TIME AFTER 3:00 PM - CHECK-OUT TIME BY 11:00 AM

Please Fax or Mail completed form to our Reservations Department at 508-778-6039 (1 formi per room)
Mail: Resort & Conference Center at Hyannis, 35 Scudder Avenue, Hyannis, MA 02601.- -

This form must be received prior to May 4, 2010.
Phone reservations will not be accepted. We do not accept purchase orders.
Any changes to your reservation must be made by submitting a revised form.
Please note change and mark form as “REVISED™ to avoid duplicate reservations.
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MASSACHUSETTS ASSOCIATION o[CONTRIBUTORY
- RE TIREMENT SYST. EMS present...

THE MACRS PUBLIC PENSION TRUSTEES WORKSHOP
JUNE 5th and JUNE 6th, 2010
FOUR POINTS SHERATON HYANNIS RESORT
(Formerly the “Sheraton Hyannis Resort)
WEST END CIRCLE, Hyannis, MA 02601

WORKSHOP REGISTRATION FORM

RETIREMENT BOARD _
ADDRESSS

ATTENDEE NAME ' . DELEGATE  STAFF

WORKSHOP ONLY REGISTRA_TION FEE $250.00...ON SITE $300.00

PLEASE REGISTER EARLY TO HELP OUR PLANNING |

MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO MACRS ANDRETURN THIS FORM TO:

MACRS, PO BOX 75, NORTH WEYMOUTH, MA' 02191 _ |
 ACCOMODATIONS.....Registrations must be made directly with the Sheraton

Hyannis Resort for the Saturday June S5th Trustee’s Workshop and the Annual

Meeting June 6th to June 9th, 2010 on the form in packet.

For additional information contact: v

Kevin Regan 617-367-0042, or 413-246-9238 or FAX 413-562-0308 or

_ E-Mail kjr228@aol.com
Fred McCray 617-773-5924 or FAX 617-472-5424
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2010 ANNUAL MEETING RETIREMENT BOARD REGISTRATION
FOUR POINTS SHERATON HYANNIS RESORT
West End Circle, Hyannis, MA 02601

Sunday June 6th 2010 through Wednesd_ay June 9tix, 2010

Please type or clearly prmt all names for accurate name tags.

Retirement Board
Address

FAX

nl
H

Telephone

A U

Name (As it will appear on the badge) Delegate Staff Spouse

If more than five attendees please copy this form for additional attendees.

Board m’embefs and staff members per person $270.00 on site $320.00
Spouse’s registration : $35.00

Date Check # ' e Amount $

Return completed form with check in envelope provided to:
‘MACRS , P.O. Box 75, North Weymouth, MA 02191

Plea;ce note the MACRS registration fee includes all meals Bfeak[ast Mon. Tues. and

Wed, Lunch Mon and Tues.. and the Banquet on Tuesday evening.
FAX 617-472-5424

. Tel. 617-773-5924
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MASSACHUSETTS ASSOCIATION of CONTRIBUTORY
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, present...

. THE MACRS PUBLIC PENSION TRUSTEES WORKSHOP
JUNE 5th and JUNE 6th, 2010/ AND Conference JUNE 6" —JUNE 9th
' FOUR POINTS SHERATON HYANNIS RESORT
(Formerly the “Sheraton Hyannis Resort)
WEST END CIRCLE, Hyanms, MA 02601

WORKSHOP and CONF ER_ENCE REGISTRATION FORM

RETIREMENT BOARD__
ADDRESSS

ATTENDEE NAME '. DELEGATE  STAFF

_ WQRKSHOP & CONFERENCE REGISTRATION FEE .$450 00
..ON SITE $520. 00

PLEASE REGISTER EARLY TO HELP OUR PLANNING .
MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO MACRS AND RETURN THIS FORM TO:
MACRS, PO BOX 75, NORTH WEYMO_UTH, MA 02191 ‘

ACCOMODATIONS.....Registrations must be made directly with the Sheraton
Hyannis Resort for the Saturday June S5th Trustee’s Workshop and the Annual

Meeting June 6th to June 9th, 2010 on the form in packet.

For additional information contact:

Kevin Regan 617-367-0042, or 413-246-9238 ‘or FAX 413-562-0308 or
E-Mail kjr228@aol.com :

Fred McCray 617-773-5924 or FAX 617—472-5424/
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Telephone
(617) 796-1100

City of Newton, Massachusetts ol
Office of the Mayor (617) 796-1113

TDD
(617) 796-1089

SETTI D. WARREN E-mail
MAYOR swarren(@newtonma.gov

April 2, 2010

Honorable Board of Aldermen
Newton City Hall

1000 Commonwealth Avenue
Newton, MA 02459

Ladies and Gentlemen:

I write to submit documentation in support of Docket Item #51-10 “.... requesting adoption of a
policy to purchase only fuel-efficient vehicles for municipal use....”. The attached policy
entitled “Energy Management and Procurement of Fuel Efficient Vehicles™ is one section from a
more encompassing City Vehicle Use and Procurement Policy.

As part of the City’s efforts to become one of the first communities in Massachusetts to become
a Department of Energy Resources (DOER) Green Community, I would be happy to discuss this
policy with the Honorable Board at your convenience.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter.

Very truly yours,

Robert R. Rooney
Chief Operating Officer’
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City of Newton Vehicle Use and Procurement Policy April 2010

Section D. Energy Management and Procurement of Fuel Efficient Vehicles

I. DEFINITIONS

Combined city and highway MPG (EPA Combined fuel economy): Combined Fuel Economy
means the fuel economy from driving a combination of 43% city and 57% highway miles and
is calculated as follows: =1/ [(0.43/city MPG) + (.57/ highway MPG)]

Drive System: The manner in which mechanical power is directly transmitted from the drive shaft
to the wheels. The following codes are used in the drive field:
AWD = All Wheel Drive: four-wheel drive automatically controlled by the vehicle
powertrain system.
4WD = 4 Wheel Drive: driver selectable four-wheel drive with 2 wheel drive option.
2WD = 2 wheel drive, either from the front or rear of the vehicle.

Heavy-duty truck: A vehicle with a manufacturer's gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) of
more than 8,500 pounds.

Exempt Vehicles: Those vehicles 1-ton or greater, vans, or sedans required to have minimum
performance requirements based on the security/safety functions within the City.

Non-exempt Vehicles: General purpose vehicles used for daily administration of the City which
typically include pick-up trucks or smaller vehicles and not required for emergency use.

II. POLICY STATEMENT

The City’s goal is to reduce to the maximum extent possible, the consumption of fuel within the
existing fleet and purchase fuel efficient vehicles wherever practicable to further reduce energy
needs within the City.

I1I. PURPOSE

To establish an policy for management of energy consumption through a fleet replacement
strategy and guidelines for the purchase of fuel efficient vehicles for municipal / school use
whenever such vehicles are commercially available and practical.

IV. APPLICABILITY
This policy applies to all divisions and departments of the City of Newton.

V. GUIDELINES
City vehicles will conform to any and all state and federal air emission standards.

Use of non-exempt vehicles will be cognizant of best practices for efficient and effective
operation to include maximizing occupancy in vehicles travelling to a common destination, not
leaving idling vehicles unattended for more than one minute, or stationary waiting in an idling
vehicle for more than three minutes.
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City of Newton Vehicle Use and Procurement Policy April 2010

All departments and divisions shall purchase only fuel efficient vehicles for general municipal use
whenever such vehicles are commercially available and practicable.

The City of Newton will maintain an annual vehicle inventory for non-exempt vehicles and a
plan to replace existing vehicles with those that meet the fuel efficiency ratings below.

Based on the most recently published US Environmental Protection Agency data on fuel efficient
vehicles, vehicles are to have a combined city and highway MPG no less than the following:

2 wheel drive car: 29 MPG

4 wheel drive car: 24 MPG

2 wheel drive small pick-up truck: 29 MPG

4 wheel drive small pick-up truck: 18 MPG

2 wheel drive standard pick-up truck: 17 MPG

4 wheel drive standard pick-up truck: 16 MPG
Note:

The latest fuel efficiency MPG ratings are available through the Massachusetts
Department of Energy Resources Green Communities Program.

Exemptions
a. Heavy-duty vehicles such as fire trucks, ambulances, vans, and public works trucks are
exempt from this criterion.
b. Police cruisers are exempt from this criterion.

Inventory
The following information shall be included in a vehicle inventory of non-exempt
vehicles and said list shall be updated on an annual basis:

a. Model; Make; Model year; Drive system; Weight Class; MPG
b. Year purchased; Annual miles driven; Total Fuel Consumption; Vehicle
Function
Note:
Departments/Divisions may use EPA combined MPG estimates or actual combined MPG.

VI. FUEL EFFICIENT VEHICLE REPLACEMENT PLAN

The City of Newton shall develop a plan to replace all non-exempt vehicles with fuel
efficient vehicles as defined above. Said plan shall outline the process by which the City of
Newton will replace vehicles, set goals for when the existing fleet will be replaced and review
said plan on an annual basis.

VII. QUESTIONS/ENFORCEMENT
All inquiries should be directed to the department/division responsible for fleet management
or the Office of the Mayor, who is responsible for fleet procurement.
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DRAFT RESOLUTION for Consideration by the Programs & Services Committee

RE DOCKET ITEM # 51-10

ALD. CROSSLEY. HESS-MAHAN & LINSKY requesting adoption of a policy to purchase only
fuel-efficient vehicles for municipal use whenever such vehicles are commercially available and
practicable, in order to satisfy the requirements to qualify as a Green Community under MGL
Chapter 25A, §10(c). [02/09/10 @ 7:25 PM]

That - in order to fulfill the criteria to merit MA DOER designation of the City of
Newton as a "Green Community”, and therefore so as to make the City of
Newton eligible for DOER funding that may be used for needed capital
investments which can further help to reduce energy use and emissions, ...

The Board of Aldermen of the City of Newton supports and requests that the
administration establish and implement a vehicle purchasing policy that
requires vehicle replacements, when needed, be in conformance to the
performance standards i(n mpg) as per the Guidelines established by the DOER,
and therefore request that the administration implement and maintain

these measures.

And further, that in order to maintain Green Communities status, and therefore to
retain eligibility for DOER funding available each year under the terms of the
Green Communities Act, the Board of Aldermen requests that the City of Newton
administration comply with DOER annual reporting and review requirements.
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